
 
REGULAR MEETING  

AGENDA 
 

PURSUANT TO A.R.S. § 38-431.02, NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN TO THE MEMBERS 
OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL AND TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC THAT THE 
FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL WILL HOLD A MEETING OPEN TO THE PUBLIC ON 
MONDAY, JUNE 15, 2015, AT 6:00 P.M., IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, 
LOCATED AT 775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. ROLL CALL:     Rankin __, Walter__, Woolridge__, Hawkins__,  

Guilin__, Anderson__. Wall____.  
 

3. MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 

4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

5. CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the 
Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  
Individual Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those 
commenting, may ask staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter 
be put on a future agenda.  However, members of the Council shall not 
discuss or take action on any matter during an open call to the public unless 
the matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 

 
6. PUBLIC HEARINGS AND PRESENTATIONS  

 
a. Public hearing on an application received from Andrea Dahlman 

Lewkowitz, Safeway, Inc., located at 3325 N. Hunt Highway, Florence, 
Arizona, for an application for acquisition of control with the Arizona 
Department of Liquor Licenses and Control; and for Council 
recommendation for approval or disapproval of said license. 

 
b. Public hearing on an application received from Andrea Dahlman 

Lewkowitz, Safeway, Inc., located at 3313 N. Hunt Highway, Florence, 
Arizona, for an application for acquisition of control with the Arizona 
Department of Liquor Licenses and Control; and for Council 
recommendation for approval or disapproval of said license. 

 
c. Presentation by the Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce recognizing 

McDonald's at Merrill Ranch as the Business of the Month. 
 

d. Retirement Award presented to Carroll Michael, Facilities Manager, for 10 
years of dedicated service. 

 
e. Years of Service Award presented to Maria Hernandez, for 20 years of 

dedicated service. 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



7. CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as 
part of the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the 
public objects at the time the agenda item is called.  

 
a. Approval of Task Order No. 2 with Baxter Design Group, LLC, for design 

services for the Turner Subdivision Phase 1 Project, in an amount not to 
exceed $46,500. 
 

b. Authorization to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with Arizona 
Department of Revenue related to Uniform Administration of the Town’s 
Transaction Privilege Tax. 
 

c. Ratification of Change Order Nos. 3 through 13, with Sun Western 
Contractors, for a total of $31,368.95, for a total project cost not to exceed 
$1,641,242.48. 
 

d. Adoption of Resolution No. 1526-15: A RESOLUTION OF TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING 
MAYOR TOM J. RANKIN, TOWN MANAGER CHARLES A. MONTOYA AND 
INTERIM FINANCE DIRECTOR MARCIA GOERDT TO ACT AS SIGNATORIES 
FOR THE TRANSACTION OF BUSINESS ON THE TOWN OF FLORENCE 
BANKING ACCOUNTS, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 
e. Approval of the May 4, and May 18, 2015 Town Council minutes. 

 
f. Receive and file the following board and commission minutes: 

 
i. March 31, 2015 Historic District Advisory Commission minutes. 

ii. March 18, 2015 Joint Use Library Advisory Board minutes. 
iii. January 22, 2015 Parks and Recreation Advisory Board minutes  

 
8. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Resolution No. 1522-15:  Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
GRANTING APPROVAL TO THE ISSUANCE OF ONE OR MORE SERIES OF 
THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, INC. TAX-EXEMPT AND/OR TAXABLE EDUCATION REVENUE 
BONDS (MOHAVE ACCELERATED LEARNING CENTER SCHOOLS), 
SERIES 2015, IN AN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO 
EXCEED $1,650,000 TO FINANCE THE ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION, 
IMPROVEMENT AND EQUIPPING OF EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES FOR 
MOHAVE ACCELERATED LEARNING CENTER AND MOHAVE 
ACCELERATED ELEMENTARY SCHOOL, INC.  

b. Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of directing staff on the Council’s Policy 
decisions for filing of future annexations.  

 
c. Discussion on the Property Lease Policy. 
 

9.   MANAGER’S REPORT 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



10.   CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
11. CALL TO THE COUNCIL 
 
12. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Council may go into Executive Session at any time during the meeting for the 
purpose of obtaining legal advice from the Town’s Attorney(s) on any of the 
agenda items pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3). 
 
POSTED ON JUNE 11, 2015, BY LISA GARCIA, TOWN CLERK, AT 775 NORTH 
MAIN STREET, 1000 SOUTH WILLOW STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA, AND AT 
WWW.FLORENCEAZ.GOV. 
 
***PURSUANT TO TITLE II OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA), 
THE TOWN OF FLORENCE DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE ON THE BASIS OF 
DISABILITY MAY REQUEST REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS BY 
CONTACTING THE TOWN OF FLORENCE ADA COORDINATOR, AT (520) 868-
7574 OR (520) 868-7502 TDD. REQUESTS SHOULD BE MADE AS EARLY AS 
POSSIBLE TO ALLOW TIME TO ARRANGE TH ACCOMMODATION.***  



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
6a. 

MEETING DATE:  June 15, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration  
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia 
                                     Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk 
 
SUBJECT:  Public Hearing and action on Andrea Dahlman 

Lewkowitz, Safeway, Inc., application for 
acquisition of control, with the Arizona 
Department of Liquor Licenses and Control.     

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   
 1st Reading  
 2nd Reading 

 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION:  
Subject: Safeway 3325 N Hunt Highway Liquor License Application                                 Meeting Date: June 15, 2015 
Page 1 of 1 

 
Public hearing on an application received from Andrea Dahlman Lewkowitz, Safeway, 
Inc., for an application for acquisition of control, with the Arizona Department of Liquor 
Licenses and Control, located at 3325 N. Hunt Highway, Florence, Arizona; and for 
Council recommendation for approval or disapproval of said license.  
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Andrea Dahlman Lewkowitz, Safeway, Inc. filed an application for acquisition of control 
with the Arizona Department of Liquor License and Control on May 7, 2015.  
 
The Town Clerk’s Office posted the Notice of Public Hearing on May 22, 2015, at 
Safeway #2835, located at 3325 N. Hunt Highway, Florence, Arizona, according to 
statutory requirements.  Management has been notified of the June 15, 2015 public 
hearing.  
 
No written communication has been received by the Town regarding this application. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
  
N/A 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that the Town Council forward a favorable recommendation to the 
Arizona Department of Liquor License and Control. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
  
Application 

















 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
6b. 

MEETING DATE:  June 15, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration  
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia 
                                     Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk 
 
SUBJECT:  Public Hearing and action on Andrea Dahlman 

Lewkowitz, Safeway, Inc., application for 
acquisition of control, with the Arizona 
Department of Liquor Licenses and Control.     

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   
 1st Reading  
 2nd Reading 

 Other 

 

Subject: Safeway 3313 N Hunt Highway Liquor License Application                                 Meeting Date: June 15, 2015 
Page 1 of 1 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION:  
 
Public hearing on an application received from Andrea Dahlman Lewkowitz, Safeway, 
Inc., for an application for acquisition of control, with the Arizona Department of Liquor 
Licenses and Control, located at 3313 N. Hunt Highway, Florence, Arizona; and for 
Council recommendation for approval or disapproval of said license.  
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Andrea Dahlman Lewkowitz, Safeway, Inc. filed an application for acquisition of control 
with the Arizona Department of Liquor License and Control on May 7, 2015.  
 
The Town Clerk’s Office posted the Notice of Public Hearing on May 22, 2015, at 
Safeway #2835, located at 3313 N. Hunt Highway, Florence, Arizona, according to 
statutory requirements.  Management has been notified of the June 15, 2015 public 
hearing.  
 
No written communication has been received by the Town regarding this application. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
  
N/A 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that the Town Council forward a favorable recommendation to the 
Arizona Department of Liquor License and Control. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
  
Application 

















 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
7a. 

MEETING DATE:  June 15, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Utilities Department  
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  John V. Mitchell, Utilities Director 
 

SUBJECT:   Approval of Task Order No. 2 with Baxter Design 
                   Group, LLC, for Design Services for the Turner  
                   Subdivision Phase 1 Project. 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject: Approval of Task Order No. 2 with Baxter Design Group, LLC                          Meeting date: June 15, 2015 
Page 1 of 1 

 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve Task Order No. 2 with Baxter Design Group, LLC, for design services 
for the Turner Subdivision Phase 1 Project, in an amount not to exceed $46,500. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
This task order will allow for engineering related design services for the Turner 
Subdivision Phase 1 Project. 
 
The Baxter Design Group, LLC, will complete Task Order No. 2, pursuant to the 
Professional Services Agreement between the Town of Florence, and the Baxter Design 
Group, LLC, dated January 5, 2015.  The fee for this task order is $46,500. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
There is $46,500 available in the current Fiscal Year 2014/2015 budget for completion 
of this work. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of Task Order No. 2 with the Baxter Design Group, LLC, in 
an amount not to exceed $46,500. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Task Order No. 2 
Professional Services Agreement 
Task Order Approval Form 



 

 
DESIGNING WORLD 

7580 N. DOBSON RD. SUITE 200    3515 STONE WALL CIR 
SCOTTSDALE, AZ 85256        HEBER CITY, UT  84032 
480-818-6001    435-709-8234 

SCOTTSDALE • HEBER CITY 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT 
  
Client 
Name: Town of Florence Date: 05/01/15 
Contact: John Mitchell Project Name:  
Address: 

Director of Public Utilities 
P.O. Box 2670 
Florence, AZ 85232  
 

 

Turner Subdivision  
Roadway / Utility 
Design  

Project 
Location: Florence, AZ 

Telephone: 520-868-7695   

Fax:  
Project 
Manager: Jared Baxter P.E. 

 
Baxter Design Group (BDG) is pleased to submit a proposal / summary of the Turner 
Subdivision Ph1 Roadway / Utility Design and Construction Survey for the Town of Florence 
(TOF).  Please review the following project tasks as described below. 
 
Task #1 Roadway/Utility Design 
 
BDG prepared roadway construction documents for Phase 1 of the Turner Subdivision.  The 
design includes Central and Willow roadways from the Florence High School in the South to 
connection with Adamsville Rd. in the North.  22nd Street will also be design between Central 
and Willow.  The design will include roadway and proposed utility improvements.  The roadway 
construction documents were submitted to TOF Public Works Department for review and 
approval.      
            Task Lump Sum:  $40,500.00 
 
Task #2 Construction Survey (Utility Installation Only) 
 
BDG survey field crews staked the proposed utility improvements.  BDG coordinated the utility 
installation and revisions with the TOF utility personnel and TOF selected contractor to ensure 
the utility installation.    

Task Lump Sum:    $3,500.00 
 

Task #3 Project Management / Contractor Coordination 
 
BDG has assisted the TOF selecting the qualified bidder.  In conjunction with TOF personnel, 
BDG coordinated the installation of the proposed improvements with the selected contractor(s).  

 
Task  Lump Sum:  $2,500.00 

 
 

Project Total Lump Sum:    $46,500.00 
 



Task Order No. 2 
Baxter Design Group 

Design Services for Turner Subdivision Phase 1 
 
 
 
 
 
Town of Florence 
P.O. Box 2670 
Florence, AZ 85131 
 
 
 
By:  ________________________________  
         Charles A. Montoya, Town Manager    
 
 
 
Date:  ______________________________  
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
  Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
  Town Attorney 
 





















 

7580 N. DOBSON RD. SUITE 200    3515 STONE WALL CIR 
SCOTTSDALE, AZF    HEBER CITY, UT 84032   SCOTTSDALE • HEBER CITY 
480-818-6001    435-709-8234 

 
DESIGNING WORLD 

 
 
May 20, 2015 
 
 
John Mitchell 
Director of Public Utilities 
P.O. Box 2670 
Florence, AZ 85232  
 
 
RE: Turner Subdivision Ph1 – Baxter Design Group Billing / Task Order 
 
John: 
 
Find attached a breakdown of the Baxter Design Group billing for the design, construction 
staking and project management of the Turner Subdivision Ph1 Roadway / Utility 
Improvements. 
 
The billing incudes the roadway improvement designs of Willow, Central St. and 22nd Ave. from 
the Florence High School in the south to Adamsville Rd. in the north.  Water and Sewer 
improvements for the proposed roadways were prepared as a separated construction package.  
Also included is the ongoing project management in concert with TOF personnel, preparation of 
project bid documents along with contractor coordination.     
 
 
Please contact me directly if you have questions or require additional information. 
 
 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Jared Baxter, P.E. 
    
 
Enclosures 

johnm
Typewritten Text
TASK ORDER #2



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
7b. 

MEETING DATE:  June 15, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Finance 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Mike Farina, Finance Director 
 
SUBJECT: Intergovernmental Agreement with Arizona 

Department of Revenue related to Uniform 
Administration of the Town’s Transaction 
Privilege Tax. 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
Subject:  IGA with AZ Dept. of Revenue  Meeting Date:  June 15, 2015 
Page 1 of 3 

 
Approve the intergovernmental agreement between the Town of Florence and the 
Arizona Department of Revenue regarding the uniform administration, licensing, 
collection, and auditing of the transaction privilege tax, use tax, severance tax, jet fuel 
excise and use tax, and rental occupancy taxes imposed by the State or cities or towns.  
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
This intergovernmental agreement (IGA) was negotiated with the Department of 
Revenue (DOR) by a consortium of city and town representatives along with assistance 
from the League of Arizona Cities and Towns.  Additionally, several attorneys and tax 
experts from many cities and towns reviewed and commented on the language during 
the process, resulting in a document that provides the maximum level of information and 
assurances for the cities possible. 
 
Local Transaction Privilege Tax (TPT) administration is governed by A.R.S. § 42-6001.  
This statute was recently modified for the purpose of tax simplification with the passage 
of House Bill 2111 in 2013 and House Bill 2389 in 2014.  This statute now requires the 
DOR to administer the transaction privilege and use taxes imposed by all cities and 
towns and to enter into a new IGA with each city and town to reflect these changes and 
clearly define the working relationship between DOR and Arizona cities and towns. 
 
This IGA intends to cover all aspects of administration after DOR takes over for all cities 
and towns, but it also includes language allowing self-collecting cities to continue their 
own tax and license programs until such time that DOR is able to perform the 
administrative functions documented in the statute.  The Town of Florence is not self-
collecting. 



Subject:  IGA with AZ Dept. of Revenue  Meeting Date:  June 15, 2015 
Page 2 of 3 

 
Although tax simplification will have the greatest impact on those cities and towns that 
are currently self-collecting local taxes, there are also considerable improvements for 
cities and towns in the State collection program, of which the Town of Florence is a part 
of, as a result of simplification, particularly in the form of receiving much more detailed 
taxpayer data. 
 
The IGA covers all aspects of local tax administration.  First and foremost, the IGA 
addresses confidentiality, including the authorized handling of confidential taxpayer 
information, expectations for the discreet use of taxpayer data to prevent unauthorized 
disclosure, and the process we will follow in the event of a disclosure.  There is also 
clarified and simplified guidance on the use of aggregated taxpayer data for public 
reporting and analysis. 
 
The IGA includes clear direction regarding the sharing of general taxpayer license 
information, legal interpretations and written guidance, rate and fee tables, and any 
other pertinent tax information that needs to be shared between the cities and towns 
and DOR. 
 
Importantly, the IGA identifies exactly which license and tax return data fields must be 
provided by DOR, and identifies in detail a series of new reports DOR will soon provide 
to all cities, both of which will serve to greatly expand the data available to the city for 
analysis purposes. 
 
The first changes related to tax simplification that went into effect were new rules 
dealing with auditing, which DOR and the cities began following in January 2015.  The 
IGA formalizes both the concepts included in statute and the main concepts used in 
practice by auditors in the field. 
 
Key factors include a commitment to audit for all jurisdictions whenever any audit is 
being done; the continued authority for any city or town to perform an audit of a 
taxpayer that is engaged in business only in their town; the general guidance that DOR 
will lead all multi-jurisdictional audits, coupled with the option for DOR to delegate actual 
audit performance to a city or town when circumstances indicate it would be the most 
efficient means of completing the audit. 
 
The IGA also provides guidance for handling voluntary disclosure by taxpayers, closing 
agreements in lieu of litigation, and sets up the responsibilities and authorities of both 
parties in terms of code or statute interpretations and legal support for protests. 
 
Most importantly, the new IGA provides for a formal review process using the new 
"State and Local Uniformity Group" made up of four city and four DOR tax experts who 
will work together to iron out any problems or conflicts between the cities and the State. 
 



Subject:  IGA with AZ Dept. of Revenue  Meeting Date:  June 15, 2015 
Page 3 of 3 

The terms of this IGA run an annual basis from July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016 and 
it renews automatically each year.  Either party has the right to reopen and renegotiate 
the terms according to provisions within the agreement. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
This agreement will not result in any budgetary impact to the City/Town. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve the Intergovernmental Agreement with Arizona Department of Revenue. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Intergovernmental Agreement with Appendices 
Letter for AZ DOR terminating existing IGA with Town effective June 30, 2015 
 



 
 
  DRAFT IGA 5-20-2015 

 

1

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN  
THE STATE OF ARIZONA AND  

THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA  
 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into this   15th   day of     June    , 2015, by and between 
the Arizona Department of Revenue, hereinafter referred to as Department, and the Town of 
Florence, an Arizona municipal corporation, hereinafter referred to as Town.  This Agreement 
shall supersede and replace all previous intergovernmental agreements, including amendments 
thereto, entered into by the Department and Town regarding the administration, collection, audit 
and/or licensing of transaction privilege tax, use tax, severance tax, jet fuel excise and use taxes 
and rental occupancy taxes imposed by the State, cities or towns. 

 
R E C I T A L S 

 
WHEREAS, Title 11, Chapter 7, Article 3 (A.R.S. § 11-952) authorizes two or more 

public agencies to enter into intergovernmental agreements to contract for services, if authorized 
by their legislative or governing bodies.  
 

WHEREAS, A.R.S. § 42-6001 et seq. was amended effective January 1, 2015 to provide 
that the Department shall collect and administer any transaction privilege and affiliated excise 
taxes imposed by any city or town in Arizona and that the Department and each city or town 
shall enter into an intergovernmental contract or agreement pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952 to 
provide a uniform method of administration, collection, audit and licensing of transaction 
privilege and affiliated excise taxes imposed by the State, cities or towns.   
 

WHEREAS, Town has taken appropriate action by ordinance, resolution or otherwise, 
pursuant to the laws applicable to the governing body of Town, to approve and authorize Town 
to enter into this Agreement. 

 
A G R E E M E N T 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, the Department and Town enter 

into this intergovernmental agreement as follows: 

 
1. Definitions 

1.1  A.R.S. means the Arizona Revised Statutes. 

1.2   Adoption of an Ordinance means final approval by majority vote of the Town 
council. 

1.3 Audit means a review to determine the correct amount of tax owed by a taxpayer 
and includes, but is not limited to, desk reviews and reviews of claims for refund. 

1.4   Closing Agreement means an agreement to compromise or settle a tax liability.   

1.5 Confidential Information means all such information as defined in A.R.S. § 42-
2001.   



 
 
  DRAFT IGA 5-20-2015 

 

2

1.6 Confidentiality Standards means the standards set forth in Appendix A or such 
other written standards mutually agreed to by the Department and Town.   

1.7   Federal Tax Information means federal return or return information the 
Department receives from the Internal Revenue Service including any information 
created by the Department derived from that information.  Documents obtained 
from a taxpayer or State records are not considered Federal Tax Information. 

1.8   Model City Tax Code means the document defined in A.R.S. § 42-6051.  The 
official copy of the Model City Tax Code is published at modelcitytaxcode.az.gov. 

1.9   Modification means a change to an assessment required or authorized by statute.   

1.10  Municipal Tax(es) means transaction privilege and affiliated excise taxes, 
including use tax, severance tax, jet fuel excise and use tax, and rental occupancy 
tax, imposed by Town in accordance with the Model City Tax Code.  Unless the 
context provides otherwise, this definition includes tax, license fees, penalties, 
interest and other similar charges. 

1.11 State means the State of Arizona.   

1.12 State and Local Uniformity Group (“SLUG”) means an advisory group 
comprised of four representatives from municipal taxing jurisdictions and four 
representatives of the Department as set forth in Section 13 below. 

1.13 Taxpayer Information means information protected from disclosure pursuant to 
Model City Tax Code § 510.   

 
2.   Disclosure of Information by Town to Department 

 
2.1  Qualified Recipients of Information: The Department shall provide a list of the 

names and job titles of Department employees authorized to request and receive 
Taxpayer Information from Town.  The Department shall inform Town of any 
additions, deletions or changes to this list within fifteen calendar days after the 
change occurs and shall provide an updated list at least annually.  This information 
shall be sent via email to Town at finance@florenceaz.gov.  The Town will not 
disclose Taxpayer Information to a Department employee whose name is not 
included on this list.  Town may contact the Department with any questions related 
to qualified recipients by contacting the Cities Unit at CitiesUnit@azdor.gov.   

2.2 Use of Information: Any Taxpayer Information released by Town to the 
Department may only be used by the Department for tax administration and 
collection purposes, and may not be disclosed to the public in any manner that does 
not comply with the Model City Tax Code.  All Taxpayer Information shall be 
stored and destroyed in accordance with the Confidentiality Standards.   

2.3  Municipal Ordinance:   



 
 
  DRAFT IGA 5-20-2015 

 

3

(a)  Town shall provide the Department with a copy of its Municipal Tax code or 
any Town ordinances imposing the taxes to be collected hereunder within ten 
calendar days of a request for such information from the Department.  This 
information shall be sent via email to the Cities Unit at CitiesUnit@azdor.gov. 

(b)  Town shall provide the Department with a copy of any ordinance adopted by 
Town after execution of this Agreement that imposes or modifies the Municipal 
Taxes to be collected hereunder, including a new or different tax rate as defined 
by A.R.S. § 42-6053(E), within ten calendar days of Adoption of an Ordinance.  
This information shall be sent via email to the Cities Unit at 
CitiesUnit@azdor.gov.  No such ordinance shall take effect on a date other 
than the first day of the month that is at least sixty calendar days after Town 
provides notice to the Department unless Town and the Department agree 
otherwise.  The Department shall add the change to the official copy of the 
Model City Tax Code within ten business days of receipt of notice from Town.  
Town is responsible for confirming the change has been made.  Pursuant to 
A.R.S. § 42-6053(E)(2), changes in tax rates have no effect unless reflected in 
the official copy of the Model City Tax Code.   

(c)  Within fifteen calendar days following the adoption of an annexation ordinance, 
one copy of the ordinance and notification of the effective date of such 
ordinance shall be sent to the Department via email at GIS@azdor.gov.    Town 
shall also include with the notice a list of businesses Town knows to be located 
in the annexed area.  The Department shall not be obligated to begin collection 
of Municipal Tax any sooner than the first day of the month that is at least sixty 
calendar days after the date the Department received notice from Town of the 
annexation.   

2.4 Development and Impact Fees:  Upon request, Town shall provide to the 
Department any information regarding development and impact fees to assist the 
Department with the auditing of taxpayers and billing and collection of taxes. 

2.5 Audits:  Upon request by the Department, Town shall allow inspections and copies 
of any Town tax audits. 

2.6 Other Information:  Town shall also provide other relevant information necessary 
for tax administration and collection purposes as requested by the Department. 

2.7  Statutory Authority: The disclosure of confidential Town tax information is 
governed by Model City Tax Code Section 510.   

 
3. Disclosure of Information by Department to Town. 

3.1  Qualified Recipients of Information: Town shall provide a list of the names and 
job titles of Town employees and any independent auditors acting on behalf of 
Town authorized to receive Confidential Information.  Town shall inform the 
Department of any additions, deletions or changes to this list within fifteen calendar 



 
 
  DRAFT IGA 5-20-2015 

 

4

days after the change occurs and shall provide an updated list at least annually.  
This information shall be sent via email to the Cities Unit at CitiesUnit@azdor.gov.  
The Department will not disclose any Confidential Information to a Town 
employee or independent auditor whose name is not included on this list.  The 
Department may contact Town with any questions related to qualified recipients by 
contacting the Town’s Finance Director at finance@florenceaz.gov.   

3.2 Suspension of Information:  The Department will not withhold Confidential 
Information from Town so long as Town complies with A.R.S. § 42-2001 et seq. 
and the Confidentiality Standards.   

(a) If the Department has information to suggest Town, or any of its duly 
authorized representatives, has violated A.R.S. § 42-2001 or the Confidentiality 
Standards, the Department will send written notice to Town detailing the 
alleged breach as understood by the Department and requesting a response to 
the allegation within twenty calendar days of the date of the letter.   

(b) The Department will review the written response from Town and consider the 
information contained therein and all relevant circumstances surrounding the 
alleged violation before making a written determination as to whether a 
suspension of information is warranted and the length of the suspension.   

(c)  If Town is dissatisfied with the Department’s determination it may within ten 
calendar days, submit a written request to SLUG requesting the group review 
the determination.   

(d) If the Department has information to suggest Town has violated the 
Confidentiality Standards, the Department may inspect Town’s records, 
facilities, and equipment to confirm whether there has been a violation.   

3.3 Information to be Provided: Within the restrictions outlined in this Section, the 
Department shall provide all of the information detailed in Appendix B, which may 
be modified by the mutal agreement of the parties.  The Department shall not 
provide Federal Tax Information to Town.  In addition to the information detailed 
in Appendix B, Town may obtain upon request: 

(a)  Inspections and/or copies of Department tax audits, including all information 
related to all cities and towns included in the tax audit; and  

(b) Other relevant information necessary for tax administration and collection 
purposes, including all information necessary to verify Town received all 
revenues collected by the Department on behalf of Town. 

3.4   Storage and Destruction of Confidential Information: All Confidential 
Information provided by the Department to Town shall be stored, protected, and 
destroyed in accordance with the Confidentiality Standards.   

 



 
 
  DRAFT IGA 5-20-2015 

 

5

3.5  Statutory Authority: The Department may disclose Confidential Information to 
Town pursuant to A.R.S. § 42-2003(H) if the information relates to a taxpayer who 
is or may be taxable by a county, city or town.  Any Confidential Information 
released to Town: 

(a)  May only be used for internal tax administration purposes as defined in A.R.S. 
§ 42-2001(4); and 

(b)  May not be disclosed to the public in any manner that does not comply with 
the Confidentiality Standards.   

A.R.S. § 42-2003(H)(2) provides that any release of Confidential Information that 
violates the Confidentiality Standards will result in the immediate suspension of any 
rights of Town to receive taxpayer information pursuant to A.R.S. § 42-2003(H). 

 
3.6  Specificity of Data:  A.R.S. § 42-6001 provides that taxpayers shall file and pay 

Municipal Taxes to the Department if the Department has developed the electronic 
and nonelectronic tools necessary to capture data with sufficient specificity to meet 
the needs of all taxing jurisdictions, including specific data regarding each tax 
classification and any corresponding deductions at each business location of the 
taxpayer.  Pursuant to A.R.S. § 42-5015, the electronic system utilized by the 
Department must be able to capture data with sufficient specificity to meet the 
needs of the taxing jurisdiction.  The Department and Town agree that JT2 and 
TPT2 (as summarized in Appendix C) are required to meet the specificity needs of 
Town.   

(a) Non-Program City/Town:  If City/Town performed its own Municipal Tax 
administration, collection, and licensing prior to July 1, 2015, then if the 
Department is unable to commit by September 1, 2015 that the data detail 
behind the JT2 and TPT2 will be provided to City/Town beginning and from 
January 1, 2016, the following shall take place: 

(1)  The term of the agreement entered into by the Department and City/Town 
pertaining to City/Town performing municipal licensing services on behalf 
of the Department shall be extended for one (1) year; and  

(2) All provisions in this Agreement pertaining to the administration, collection, 
and licensing of Municipal Taxes shall not go into effect until such time as 
the Department is able to meet the requirements of A.R.S. § 42-6001 and 
A.R.S. § 42-5015, however all language in this Agreement related to audit 
functions shall remain in full force and effect. 

(b) Program Cities/Towns: If the Department performed Municipal Tax 
administration, collection and licensing for City/Town prior to July 1, 2015, 
then if the Department is unable to commit by September 1, 2015 that the data 
detail behind the JT2 and TPT2 will be provided to City/Town beginning and 
from January 1, 2016, the Department will contintinue to perform those 
functions.  The continued provision of such service, however, shall not be 
deemed waiver of any legal rights or remedies afforded to City/Town including, 



 
 
  DRAFT IGA 5-20-2015 

 

6

but not limited to, a failure to meet the requirements of A.R.S. § 42-6001 and 
A.R.S. § 42-5015. 

 
4. Audit.   
 
The Department shall administer the audit functions for Town in accordance with the following 
provisions. 
 

4.1 Training:  All auditors and supervisors shall be trained in accordance with the 
policies of the Department.  Auditors who have not completed the training may 
only work in connection with a trained auditor and cannot be the only auditor 
assigned to the audit.  The Department shall:  

 
(a)  Provide audit training at least three times per year, or more frequently if there 

is a demonstrated need, and be responsible for its costs of the training and any 
associated materials; 

(b)  Provide additional training when practical;   

(c) Notify Town of any training sessions at least thirty calendar days before the 
date of the training session; 

(d) Provide copies of State tax statutes, audit reference materials and audit 
procedures and manuals;   

 (e) Permit Town auditors and supervisors to attend any scheduled training as 
space permits at designated training location: and 

(f) Provide additional training as needed to inform auditors and supervisors 
regarding changes in State law or Department policy. 

 
4.2 Conflict of Interest: An auditor or supervisor trained and authorized to conduct an 

audit may not conduct any of the following prohibited acts:   
 

(a)  Represent a taxpayer in any tax matter against the Department or Town while 
employed or in an independent contractor relationship with the Department or 
Town. 

(b) Attempt to use his/her official position to secure any valuable thing or 
valuable benefit for himself/herself or his/her family members. 

(c)   Represent a taxpayer before the Department or Town concerning any matter 
in which he/she personally participated for a period of one year after he/she 
ends employment or the independent contractor relationship with the 
Department or Town. 

(d)  Use information he/she acquires in the course of the official duties as an 
auditor or supervisor in a manner inconsistent with his/her official duties 
without prior written approval from the Department.   



 
 
  DRAFT IGA 5-20-2015 

 

7

(e) For a period of one year after he/she ends employment or an independent 
contractor relationship with the Department or Town, work in the same firm 
as a person who represents a taxpayer against the Department or Town unless 
the firm institutes formal barriers to prevent any sharing of information 
between the trained auditor or supervisor and the remainder of the firm.   

 
The Department may revoke an individual’s authority to audit and prohibit the use 
of any auditor or supervisor who violates this provision. 

 
4.3 Audits and Refunds:   

 
(a)   Town may conduct an audit of a taxpayer engaged in business only in Town.  

Before commencing such audit, Town shall notify the Department to ensure 
the taxpayer is not already scheduled for an audit.  The Department will 
provide Town with a written response within fifteen calendar days of the 
notice from Town. 

 
(b) Except as permitted below, the Department shall conduct all audits of 

taxpayers having locations in two or more cities or towns.  A Town auditor 
may participate in any audit Town requested the Department to perform. 

 
(c) Town shall notify the Department if it wants an audit of a taxpayer having 

locations in two or more Arizona cities or towns and whose primary business 
activity is in the following business classifications taxable by Town, but not a 
taxable activity under State law: 

 
1. Residential rentals; 
2. Commercial rentals; 
3. Speculative Builders; or 
4. Advertising. 
 
The Department will authorize such audits, to be overseen by the Department, 
unless there is already an audit of the taxpayer scheduled, or the Department 
determines the audit selection is discriminatory, an abuse of process or poses 
other similar defects.  The Department will notify Town of its determination 
within thirty calendar days.  No initial audit contact may occur between Town 
and a taxpayer until the Department approves the audit notice. 

 
(d) Town may request the Department conduct an audit of a taxpayer having 

locations in two or more Arizona cities or towns and whose primary business 
is subject to both city and state tax.  The request must be made using the 
Department’s audit request form.  Copies of the form can be obtained from the 
Department’s TPT Hub Unit at HubUnit@azdor.gov. The Department shall 
notify Town of the decision regarding the request within thirty calendar days 
of receipt of the request.   

 



 
 
  DRAFT IGA 5-20-2015 

 

8

(e) The Department may deny a request for an audit for the following reasons: 

1. An audit is already scheduled or planned for the taxpayer within six 
months of the request; 

2. The requested audit would interfere with strategic tax administration 
planning; 

3. The audit selection is discriminatory, an abuse of process or poses other 
similar defects; 

4. The request lacks sufficient information for the Department to determine 
whether it is appropriate; 

5. The Taxpayer was audited within the previous two years; 

6. The Department lacks sufficient resources to conduct the audit; or 

7. The scope or subject of the audit does not justify the use of Department 
resources.   

 
(f) If the Department denies a request to conduct an audit because it either lacks 

resources to conduct the audit itself or the scope or subject of the audit does 
not justify the use of Department resources then Town shall notify the 
Department if it wants to conduct the audit under the supervision of the 
Department.  No initial audit contact may occur between Town and a taxpayer 
until the Department appoints someone to supervise the audit. 

 
(g) Any decision by the Department denying Town’s request to conduct any audit 

may be referred to SLUG in accordance with Section 13 of this Agreement.   
 
(h) All audits conducted by Town shall be in accordance with standard audit 

procedures defined in the Department audit manual.  All auditors shall be 
trained in accordance with Section 4.1 above.   

 
(i) The Department may appoint a manager to supervise any audit conducted by 

Town. 
 
(j) All audits shall include all taxing jurisdictions in the State regardless of which 

jurisdiction’s auditors participate in the audit.  All desk reviews must include 
all taxing jurisdictions for which there is information available. 

 
(k) The Department shall issue all audit assessments on behalf of all taxing 

jurisdictions in a single notice to the taxpayer.   
 
(l) The Department shall issue Modifications to audit assessments on behalf of all 

taxing jurisdictions in a single notice to the taxpayer.   
 

4.4 Claims for Refund:   
 



 
 
  DRAFT IGA 5-20-2015 

 

9

(a)   When a taxpayer files a request for refund, including refunds requested by 
filing amended returns, the Department shall process the request and review it 
for mathematical errors or for the failure of the taxpayer to properly compute 
the tax based on the taxable income reported on the return or refund request.   

 
(b) The Department will notify Town of all refund requests that are processed 

involving Town’s Municipal Taxes within thirty calendar days of processing 
the refund.  Town may request an audit of the taxpayer as set forth in Section 
4.3 above.  . 

 
(c)  The Department may assign an auditor to review requests for refunds.  The 

Department will notify Town, within thirty calendar days of initiating a 
review, of all refunds under review by an auditor pertaining to a taxpayer who 
engages in business within Town’s taxing jurisdiction and may request that 
Town assign an auditor to assist with such reviews. 

 
(d) Town is responsible for payment of all amounts to be refunded to taxpayers 

for Municipal Tax incorrectly paid to Town.  The Department may offset a 
remittance to Town under this Agreement to cover the amounts of allowed 
refunds.  If there are insufficient funds available to pay the refund, Town must 
pay the Department within sixty days of written demand from the Department. 

 
(e) The Department shall issue refund approvals/denials on behalf of all taxing 

jurisdictions in a single notice to the taxpayer.  Town may request copies of 
such determinations. 

 
4.5 Protests: Taxpayer protests of audit assessments and desk review assessments and 

refund denials shall be directed to the Department.  Appeals of audit assessments, 
desk review assessments and refund denials shall be administered pursuant to Title 
42, Chapter 1, Article 6, Arizona Revised Statues.  Upon request, the Department 
shall notify Town of any appeals within 30 days of receipt of the protest.   

 
4.6 Notice of Resolution: The Department shall notify Town when a protest is 

resolved, including information concerning the resolution of the protest, within 30 
days after the resolution of a protest.   

 
4.7 Status Reports:  The Department shall keep SLUG apprised of the status of each 

protested matter involving the imposition of Municipal Taxes.  Town may request 
to be on a distribution list for monthly status reports by contacting the Department’s 
Cities Unit.   

 
5. Voluntary Disclosure Agreements 
 
The Department may enter into a voluntary disclosure agreement with a taxpayer.  A voluntary 
disclosure agreement may limit the years subject to audit and waive penalties.  Town may 



 
 
  DRAFT IGA 5-20-2015 

 

10

request to be kept informed of voluntary disclosure agreements involving Town Municipal Tax.  
If Town makes that request, the Department will notify Town of the Department’s intent to enter 
into an agreement and the Department will provide the taxpayer’s identity within thirty calendar 
days of disclosure.  Town may request an audit of a taxpayer subject to a voluntary disclosure 
agreement pursuant to Section 4.3 above. 

 
6. License Compliance 
 

6.1 License Issuance and Renewal:  The Department shall issue new Municipal Tax 
licenses and renew such licenses for Town Municipal Tax.  The Department of Revenue shall 
provide Town with information about all persons obtaining and renewing tax licenses as set forth 
in Appendix B. 

 
6.2 License Checks:  The Department and Town shall coordinate efforts to conduct tax 

license compliance checks through canvassing and other compliance methods.    
 
6.3 Confidentiality:  Any tax license information Town obtains from the Department is 

considered Confidential Information and may only be disclosed as authorized by A.R.S. § 42-
2003.  Any tax license information Town obtains through its own efforts may be disclosed as 
allowed by applicable Town laws. 

 
6.4 Changes to License Fees:  Within fifteen calendar days following the Adoption of 

an Ordinance (or official acknowledgment of approval of an ordinance by voters in an election of 
a charter city) issuing or modifying a tax license fee, one copy of the ordinance and notification 
of the effective date of such ordinance shall be sent to the Department via email at 
CitiesUnit@azdor.gov.  The Department shall not be obligated to begin collection of the new or 
modified fee any sooner than sixty calendar days after the date the Department received the 
ordinance from Town.  Notice of an ordinance concerning a renewal tax license fee must be 
received by the Department by July 31 in order to be collected the following calendar year.   
 
 
7. Closing Agreements 
 

7.1 Approval - The Department shall notify Town before entering into a Closing 
Agreement related to the tax levied and imposed by Town.  The Department shall 
seek approval from either Town or SLUG before entering into such Closing 
Agreement.  If the Closing Agreement concerns only Town, then the Department 
will attempt to obtain approval from Town first, and will only seek approval from 
SLUG if Town is unresponsive or the Department and Town cannot reach an 
agreement.  Approval and notice is not required for Modifications of assessments.   

 
7.2 Litigation - During the course of litigation, the Department shall seek a range of 

settlement authority from Town or SLUG, unless the circumstances prevent such 
action.  The Department may also request a telephonic meeting of SLUG if time 
and circumstances require immediate action.   



 
 
  DRAFT IGA 5-20-2015 

 

11

 
8.  Responsibility for Representation in Litigation. 
 

8.1 Administrative Proceedings:  The Department shall be responsible for 
coordinating the litigation and defending the assessment or refund denial in any 
administrative appeals before the Office of Administrative Hearings or the Director 
of the Department regardless of who conducted the audit.  The Department shall be 
reasonably diligent in defending the interests of Town and Town shall assist in such 
representation as may be requested by the Department.   

 
8.2 Further Appeals:  The Arizona Attorney General is responsible for defending the 

assessment or refund denial at the Board of Tax Appeals, the Arizona Tax Court 
and all higher courts.  Town shall assist the Attorney General in such representation 
and litigation as requested by the Attorney General’s Office.   

 
8.3 Mutual Cooperation: The Department and Town agree they shall cooperate in the 

appeal and litigation processes and shall ensure their auditors, supervisors, and 
other necessary employees are available to assist the Department and the Attorney 
General for informal interviews, providing documents and computer records, 
preparing for depositions, attending depositions and trial as witnesses, and assisting 
in trial/hearing preparation as needed. 

 
8.4  Administrative Decisions: The Department shall provide a copy of any and all 

administrative hearing level decisions, including Director’s decisions issued by the 
Department to all jurisdictions on a distribution list.  Town may request to be on the 
distribution list by contacting the Department’s Cities Unit.  Administrative 
decisions are Confidential Information and must be stored and destroyed in 
accordance with the Confidentiality Standards. 

 
9.   Collection of Municipal Taxes 
 

9.1 Tax Returns:  Taxpayers who are subject to Town Municipal Taxes shall pay 
such taxes to the Department.  Tax payments shall be accompanied by a return 
prepared by taxpayer on a form prescribed by the Department.   

9.2 Collection:  The Department shall collect any Municipal Tax imposed by Town 
recorded on the Department’s tax accounting system.  Amounts the Department 
collects for delinquent Town Municipal Tax accounts after the termination of this 
Agreement shall be forwarded to Town. 

9.3 Remittance:  All amounts collected by the Department for Municipal Taxes under 
this Agreement shall be remitted to Town weekly on the basis of actual collections.  
The Department shall initiate the electronic payment by noon on the Monday after 
the end of the week in which the collections were made.  Remittance shall be made 
in the form of immediately available funds transferred electronically to the bank 
account designated by Town.   



 
 
  DRAFT IGA 5-20-2015 

 

12

9.4 Abatement: The Department, with the approval of the Attorney General, may 
abate tax under certain circumstances.  During the ordinary course of business, the 
Department may determine for various reasons that certain accounts shall be 
closed or cancelled.  The Department shall seek input from Town or SLUG before 
abating tax or closing accounts.  The Department may request a telephonic meeting 
of SLUG if time and circumstances require immediate action.   

9.5 Funds Owed to Town:  At all times and under all circumstances payments 
remitted by a taxpayer to the Department for Town Municipal Taxes will be 
considered property of Town.  The Department may not retain or fail to remit such 
funds to Town for any reason not specifically set forth in this Agreement 
including, but not limited to, during the course of a dispute between Town and the 
Department. 

 
10.  Financing Collection of Taxes. 
 
The costs incurred by the Department in administering this Agreement shall be financed through 
the State general fund appropriation to the Department.   

 
11.   Inter-Jurisdictional Transfers.   
 
All inter-jurisdictional transfers of Municipal Tax monies by the Department shall be handled in 
the following manner: 
 

11.1 Requests:  Requests for inter-jurisdictional transfers shall be made to the 
Department.  The Department will review the request and will not automatically 
accept the request. 

 
11.2 Notice: The Department shall notify Town and any other city or town implicated 

in the requested transfer a minimum of thirty calendar days prior to any inter-
jurisdictional transfer of money. 

 
11.3 Dispute Resolution: Any city or town subject to an inter-jurisdictional transfer 

shall resolve any dispute over the allocation of the tax in accordance with A.R.S. 
§ 42-6003 and the Department shall transfer the funds subject to an inter-
jurisdictional transfer in accordance with the agreed upon allocation in a timely 
manner.  

 
12. Educational Outreach. 
 
Town may conduct, at its own expense, educational outreach to taxpayers who are conducting 
business activities within Town’s taxing jurisdiction concerning the Model City Tax Code and 
the collection and administration of Municipal Taxes.  Educational outreach shall be consistent 



 
 
  DRAFT IGA 5-20-2015 

 

13

with applicable law and Department written guidance.  Upon request, Town shall provide 
information to the Department concerning such educational outreach efforts. 

 
13.  SLUG.   
 
The Department shall create an advisory group to help resolve issues  
 

13.1 Members: The members shall consist of four seats representing municipal taxing 
jurisdictions and four seats representing the Department.  Member seats may be 
split so some people fill the position for only certain issues, such as audit 
selection or collection abatement.  There shall also be a list of alternate members, 
who may be asked by a regular member who is unable to attend a meeting to take 
that member's place at a SLUG meeting.  

 
13.2 Selection:  The Director of the Department shall appoint people to serve as 

members of SLUG.  Municipal taxing jurisdictions shall nominate members from 
municipal taxing jurisdictions.  All members shall serve for a period of one year 
unless they resign at an earlier date.  Members may be appointed to serve 
consecutive terms.  Members appointed to fill vacancies shall serve for the time 
remaining on the term. 

 
13.3 Meetings:  SLUG shall meet on a regular basis and at least monthly unless the 

members agree to cancel the meetings due to a lack of agenda items.  It can 
schedule additional meetings as necessary to timely discuss issues presented.  
Alternate members may attend meetings, but cannot participate in any discussion 
or voting, unless filling the seat of a regular member.   

 
13.4 Issues: Town may refer issues to SLUG involving the following: 
 

(a)  Decisions by the Department to not audit a taxpayer;  
 

(b) Amendments to Department audit procedures or manuals; 
 
(c)  Closing Agreements or a range of settlement authority;  
 
(d) Abatement or account closure in collections; 
 
(e) Suspension of disclosure of information from the Department; and 
 
(f) Other issues as authorized by the Director of the Department or agreed upon 

by the parties. 
 
13.5 Recommendations:  SLUG shall make recommendations to the Director of the 

Department.  If the recommendation is approved by at least five members of 
SLUG, the Director will accept the recommendation of SLUG.  If  SLUG cannot 



 
 
  DRAFT IGA 5-20-2015 

 

14

reach a recommendation agreeable to at least five members of the group, the 
Director may act as he deems to be in the best interests of all parties.   

 
13.6 Voting: Voting shall be by secret ballot.   
 
13.7 Procedures:  SLUG may develop procedures concerning the operation of the 

group as long as they are not inconsistent with this Agreement. 

 
14.  Funding of Additional Auditors by Town.   
 

14.1 Funding: At the sole discretion of Town, Town may contribute funding to the 
Department to pay for additional auditors to assist the Department in the 
performance of audits of Municipal Tax owed to Town.  Such additional auditors 
funded by Town shall at all times be deemed to be employees of the Department 
and under no circumstances shall be deemed to be employees or agents of Town.  
It is the parties’ intention that Town funding be used to increase the capabilities of 
the Department to perform Municipal Tax audits and not to subsidize or replace 
State funding required for audit and collection of taxes. 

 
14.2 Use of Funds:  Town funding for additional auditors under this Section shall be 

used to fund the auditors’ salaries and employee related expenses and shall not be 
used to pay for Department office space, utilities, equipment, supplies, or similar 
kinds of overhead.   

 
14.3 Pool of Funds:  The Department may pool any Town funding with any other 

similar funding provided by other municipal taxing jurisdictions to pay for 
additional auditors.  The Department shall separately account for such funds in its 
annual budget. 

 
14.4 Accounting:  The Department shall provide an annual accounting to Town, by 

August 31 each year describing how Town funding was used during the prior 
fiscal year. 

 
15.  Satellite Offices for Department Auditors. 
 

15.1 Funding: Town, at its own expense and at its sole discretion, may provide one or 
more satellite offices and associated amenities for use by Department employees 
to provide audit and/or customer service to taxpayers.  Use of such facilities by 
Department employees shall be at the sole discretion of the Department.  Nothing 
in this section shall require the Department to make use of such facilities provided 
by Town. 

 
15.2 Requirements:  Any Department employee using a Town satellite office must 

meet reasonable requirements of Town related to the use of the facility.  Town 
shall be responsible for notifying the Department of any concerns, and the 



 
 
  DRAFT IGA 5-20-2015 

 

15

Department shall be responsible for taking appropriate actions to resolve those 
concerns. 

 
15.3 Termination: Once a satellite office is established, Town shall provide at least 

180 calendar days written notice to the Department prior to the termination or 
relocation of a satellite office. The Department may discontinue the use of a 
satellite office at any time upon notice to Town and shall promptly remove all 
Department property. 

 
15.4 License: All requirements of Town and the Department related to the satellite 

office shall be outlined in a mutually acceptable form of license and subject to 
separate approval. 

 
16.  Non-availability of Funds. 
 
Every payment obligation of the Department and the Town pursuant to this Agreement is 
conditioned upon the availability of funds appropriated or allocated for the payment of such 
obligation, except for the rendering of funds to Town paid by a taxpayer for Municipal Taxes or 
tax license fees of Town.  If funds are not appropriated, allocated and available or if the 
appropriation is changed resulting in funds no longer being available for the continuance of this 
Agreement, this Agreement may be terminated at the end of the period for which funds are 
available.  No liability shall accrue to the State in the event this provision is exercised, and the 
State shall not be obligated or liable for any future payments or for any damages as a result of 
termination under this Section.  The termination of this Agreement shall not entitle the 
Department to retain any Municipal Tax collected on behalf of Town pursuant to this Agreement.   

 
17.  Waiver. 
 
Nothing in this Agreement should be interpreted as Town relinquishing its legal rights under the 
Arizona Constitution or other applicable law, nor that Town is conceding the administration and 
collection of its Municipal Tax is not of a local interest or should not be under local control.   

 
18.  Cancellation 
 
The requirements of A.R.S. § 38-511 apply to this Agreement.  The Department or Town may 
cancel this Agreement, without penalty or further obligation, if any person significantly involved 
in initiating, negotiating, securing, drafting or creating this Agreement on behalf of the 
Department or Town is, at any time while this Agreement or any extension is in effect, an 
employee, agent or consultant of the other party with respect to the subject matter of this 
Agreement. 

 
19.  Notice. 
 



 
 
  DRAFT IGA 5-20-2015 

 

16

(a) When any Notice to Town is required under the terms of this Agreement, such Notice 
shall be mailed to Town at the following address, directed to the attention of: 

 
   Town of Florence 
   Attn: Town Manager 
   PO Box 2670 
   775 N. Main Street 
   Florence, AZ 85132 

 
(b) When any Notice to the Department is required under the terms of this Agreement, such 

Notice shall be mailed to: 
 
   Arizona Department of Revenue 
   Attn:  Director, Division Code 20 
   1600 W. Monroe  
   Phoenix, AZ 85007 
 

Notice to the Department’s Hub Unit or City Unit may be mailed to:  
 

Arizona Department of Revenue 
   Division Code 16 
   1600 W. Monroe  
   Phoenix, AZ 85007 

 
 
20.  Non-discrimination. 
 
The Department and Town shall comply with Executive Order 2009-9, which mandates all 
persons, regardless of race, color, religion, sex, age, or national origin, shall have equal access to 
employment opportunities, and all other applicable State and Federal employment laws, rules, 
and regulations, including the Americans with Disabilities Act.  The Department and /Town shall 
take affirmative action to ensure applicants for employment and employees are not discriminated 
against due to race, creed, color, religion, sex, national origin or disability. 

 
21.  Compliance with Immigration Laws and A.R.S. § 41-4401. 
 

21.1 The Department and Town shall comply with all Federal immigration laws and 
regulations relating to employees and warrants compliance with A.R.S. § 23-
214(A) which reads in part: “After December 31, 2007, every employer, after 
hiring an employee, shall verify the employment eligibility of the employee 
through the e-verify program.” 

 
21.2 A breach of compliance with immigration laws and regulations shall be deemed a 

material breach of this Agreement and may be grounds for the immediate 
termination of this Agreement.   



 
 
  DRAFT IGA 5-20-2015 

 

17

 
21.3 The Department and Town retain the legal right to inspect the papers of any 

employee who works on the Agreement to ensure the Department and Town is 
complying with the applicable Federal immigration laws and regulations and State 
statutes as set forth above. 

 
22.  Audit of Records. 
 
Town and the Department shall retain all data, books, and other records (“Records”) relating to 
this Agreement for at least six (6) years (a) after termination of this Agreement, and (b) following 
each annual renewal thereof.  All Records shall be subject to inspection by audit by the State at 
reasonable times.  Upon request, the Department and Town shall produce any or all such records.  
This Agreement is subject to A.R.S. §§ 35-214 and -215. 

 
23.  Amendments. 
 
Any amendments to or modifications of this Agreement must be executed in writing in 
accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. 

 
24.  Mutual Cooperation. 
 
In the event of a disagreement between the parties with regard to the terms, provisions and 
requirements of this Agreement or in the event of the occurrence of any circumstances bearing 
upon or affecting this Agreement, parties hereby agree to mutually cooperate in order to resolve 
the said disagreement or deal with the said circumstance.  

 
25.  Arbitration. 
 
To the extent required by A.R.S. § 12-1518(B) and as provided for in A.R.S. § 12-133, the parties 
agree to resolve any dispute arising out of this Agreement by arbitration.  The parties agree that 
any lawsuit filed by Town relating to the issues outlined in Section 17 of this Agreement is not 
considered to be a dispute arising out of this Agreement. 

 
26.  Implementation. 
 
The implementation and execution of the provisions of this Agreement shall be the responsibility 
of the Director of the Department or his representative and the Mayor his/her designee, or 
another party with designated authority pursuant to applicable law or Town charter on behalf of 
Town.   

 
27.  Limitations. 



 
 
  DRAFT IGA 5-20-2015 

 

18

 
Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as limiting or expanding the statutory 
responsibilities of the parties in performing functions beyond those granted to them by law, or as 
requiring the parties to expend any sum in excess of their appropriations. 

 
28.  Duration. 
 

28.1 The term of this Agreement shall be from July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016.  
This Agreement shall automatically be renewed for successive one year terms 
thereafter unless either party shall terminate this Agreement by notice, in writing, 
no later than sixty calendar days prior to the expiration of the term then in effect.  

 
28.2 If State legislation enacted subsequent to the date of this Agreement substantially 

affects the performance of this Agreement by either party or substantially 
diminishes the benefits either party would receive under this Agreement, either 
party may then terminate this Agreement by giving at least thirty calendar days’ 
notice to the other party.  The termination will become effective immediately 
upon the expiration of the notice period unless otherwise agreed to by the parties. 

 
28.3 Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary herein, both parties may by mutual 

agreement provide for the termination of this contract upon such terms and at 
such time as is mutually agreeable to them. 

 
28.4 Any notice of termination shall be mailed and served on the other party in 

accordance with Section 19 of this Agreement. 
 
28.5 During the term of this Agreement, the terms and conditions of this Agreement 

will undergo an annual review to be completed no later than March 1st of each 
year.  The review will be performed by a committee made up of equal parts 
representatives of the Department and representatives of the municipal taxing 
jurisdictions entering into an IGA with the Department for the administration and 
collection of Municipal Taxes. 

 
29.  Choice of Law. 
 
The laws and regulations of the State of Arizona shall govern the rights of the parties, the 
performance of this Agreement, and any disputes arising from this Agreement.   

 
30.  Entire Agreement. 
 
This document, including other documents referred herein, and any approved subcontracts, 
amendments and modifications made thereto, shall constitute the entire Agreement between the 
parties and shall supersede all other understandings, oral or written.   



 
 
  DRAFT IGA 5-20-2015 

 

19

 
31.  Signature Authority. 
 

31.1  By signing below, the signer certifies he or she has the authority to enter into this 
Agreement on behalf of his or her respective party, and he or she has read the 
foregoing and agrees to accept the provisions herein on said party’s behalf. 

 



 
 
  DRAFT IGA 5-20-2015 

 

20

31.2 This Intergovernmental Agreement may be executed in counterpart. 
 
 

  
Signature                                                                            Date 

 
Signature                                                                               Date 

Typed Name and Title 

Tom Rankin, Mayor 

Typed Name and Title 

 
Entity Name 

Town of Florence 

Entity Name 

 
Address 

PO Box 2670, N. Main Street 
Address 

 
City                          State                   Zip 

Florence                      AZ                85132 

City                          State                   Zip 

 
RESERVED FOR THE ATTORNEY GENERAL: RESERVED FOR TOWN ATTORNEY: 
 
This agreement between public agencies has been 
reviewed pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952 by the 
undersigned Assistant Attorney General who has 
determined that it is in proper form and is within the 
powers and authority granted under the laws of the 
State of Arizona to the Arizona Department of 
Revenue represented by the Attorney General. 
 

MARK BRNOVICH 
The Attorney General 

 
___________________________________________ 

Signature 

Assistant Attorney General 
 
Date: __________________________ 

 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND AUTHORITY: 
 
 
BY:________________________________ 
             TOWN ATTORNEY 
 
Date: ______________________________ 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
BY:________________________________ 
            TOWN CLERK 
 
Date:_______________________________ 

 



APPENDIX A 
 

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE  
CONFIDENTIALITY REQUIREMENTS 

 
1. Confidential Information 
 
1.1 Confidential Information is defined in A.R.S § 42-2001.  Confidential Information may 

not be disclosed except as provided by statute.  A.R.S. § 42-2001(B). 
 
1.2 License information obtained from the Department of Revenue is Confidential 

Information and may only be disclosed as authorized by A.R.S. § 42-2003.  License 
information obtained from other sources is not Confidential Information. 

 
1.3 Information about a taxpayer’s identity obtained from the Department of Revenue is 

Confidential information and may only be disclosed as authorized by A.R.S. § 42-2003.  
Identity information obtained from other sources is not Confidential Information.   

 
1.4 Confidential Information includes information about a single taxpayer and also 

aggregated information about a group of identified or identifiable taxpayers.  Aggregated 
information from fewer than three taxpayers in a grouping on a statewide basis or fewer 
than ten taxpayers in a grouping for an area that is less than state level (city or town) may 
be Confidential Information.  Such information may not be released unless the Town 
Administrator reviews the relevant information concerning the aggregate data and makes 
a determination in writing that the aggregate data does not reveal information about any 
specific taxpayer.  Such determination should take into consideration the following: 

 

a. The proportionality of the tax information applicable to individual members of the 
group of taxpayers; no individual taxpayer’s information should be discernable due 
to its relative size/taxable sales, compared to other members of the group; 

b. The total aggregated tax information; the aggregate information cannot allow 
viewers to draw conclusions about individual taxpayers (e.g., there are 6 car 
dealers in the city and the total aggregate sales were $900,000 and none of them 
reported individual sales above the $20,000 mark, which would have qualified for 
the lower tax rate on large purchases) 

c. Any other factor that could cause the aggregate data to be used to determine 
information specific to a single taxpayer. 

 
 
2. Protecting Information 
 
2.1 City/Town must identify all places, both physical and logical, where Confidential 

Information is received, processed and stored and create a plan to adequately secure those 
areas.   

 



 

2.2 Confidential Information must be protected during transmission, storage, use, and 
destruction.  Town must have policies and procedures to document how it protects its 
information systems, including Confidential Information contained therein.  An example 
of appropriate protection standards is set forth in National Institute of Standards and 
Technology Special Publication 800-53.  The publication may be found at 
 http://nvlpubs.nist.gov/nistpubs/SpecialPublications/NIST.SP.800-53r4.pdf  

 
2.3 Employees are prohibited from inspecting information unless they have a business reason 

for the information.  Browsing information concerning friends, neighbors, family 
members, or people in the news is strictly prohibited.    

 
2.4 All removable media, including paper and CDs, containing Confidential Information 

must be secured when not in use and after normal business hours by placing all materials 
in a locked drawer or cabinet.  During use, Confidential Information must be protected so 
that it is not visible to members of the public or anyone without a business need for the 
information. 

 
2.5 All individuals accessing or storing Confidential Information from an alternative work 

site must enter into a signed agreement that specifies how the Confidential Information 
will be protected while at that site.  Only trusted employees shall be permitted to access 
Confidential Information from alternative sites.  Confidential Information may not be 
accessed while in public places such as restaurants, lounges, or pools. 

 
2.6 Confidential Information may not be sent outside the local area network by unencrypted 

email.  Town is responsible for ensuring in-flight email communications containing 
Confidential Information are sent through a secure process.  This may include encryption 
of the email message, a secure mailbox controlled by Town, an encrypted point-to-point 
tunnel between the correspondents or use of Transport Layer Security (TLS) between 
correspondents.  The acceptable encryption algorithms are set forth in the standards 
attached as Exhibit 1, which may be updated to accommodate changed technology. 

 
2.7 Confidential Information may not be discussed in elevators, restrooms, the cafeteria, or 

other public areas.  Terminals should be placed in such a manner that prohibits public 
viewing of Confidential Information. 

 
2.8 When transporting confidential materials the materials should be covered so that others 

cannot see the Confidential Information.  When sending Confidential Information by fax 
a cover sheet should always be used. 

 
2.9 Any person with unsupervised access to Confidential Information shall receive training 

on the confidentiality laws and requirements to protect such information before being 
given access to such Information and annually thereafter.  They must sign certificates 
after the training acknowledging that they understand their responsibilities.  Town must 
keep records to document this training and certification.  

 
3. Disclosure of Information 



 

 
3.1 Confidential Information may only be disclosed as permitted by A.R.S. § 42-2003.   
 
3.2 Confidential Information is confidential by statute and, therefore, does not have to be 

disclosed in response to a public records request.  A state agency may deny inspection of 
public records if the records are confidential by statute.  Berry v. State, 145 Ariz. 12, 13 
699 P.2d 387, 388 (App. 1985).   

 
3.3 A taxpayer may designate a person to whom Confidential Information may be disclosed 

by completing a Department of Revenue Form 285, or such other form that contains the 
information included in the Form 285.  Town may contact the Department of Revenue’s 
Disclosure Officer if there are any questions concerning this requirement. 

 
Disposal of Information 
 
4.1 All removable media containing Confidential Information must be returned to the 

Department of Revenue or sanitized before disposal or release from the control of 
City/Town.   

 
4.2 Confidential Information may be destroyed by shredding or burning the materials when 

no longer needed.  Confidential Information may not be disposed of by placing the 
materials in the garbage or recycle bins.  Destruction of Confidential Information may be 
performed by a third party vendor.  Town must take appropriate actions to protect the 
Confidential Information in transit and storage before it is destroyed, such as periodic 
inspections of the vendor. 

 
4.3 Computer system components and devices such as copiers and scanners that have been 

used to store or process Confidential Information may not be repurposed for non-tax 
administration uses unless the memory or hard drive of the device is sanitized to ensure 
under no circumstances Confidential Information can be restored or recovered.   



 

EXHIBIT 1 
 

ENCRYPTION STANDARDS 
 
1.0  Acceptable Encryption Algorithms – The following encryption algorithms are 

considered acceptable for use in information systems to protect the transmission or 
storage of Confidential Information and system access.  

1.1.1  Acceptable Security Strength – the security strength of an encryption algorithm 
is a projection of the time frame during which the algorithm and the key length 
can be expected to provide adequate security. The security strength of encryption 
algorithms is measured in bits, a measure of the difficulty of discovering the key.  

a. The current minimum key strength for Confidential Information is 112 bits.  

 
1.1.2  Symmetric Encryption Algorithms – The following symmetric encryption 

algorithms are considered acceptable for use. 
Algorithm 
 

Reference Acceptable Key Strengths 

Advanced Encryption Standard (AES) 
 

FIPS 197 128, 192 or 256 bits 

Triple Data Encryption Algorithm 
(TDEA) (three key 3DES) 

SP 800-67 168 bits 

1.1.3  Key Agreement Schemes – The following key agreement schemes are 
considered acceptable for use 

Key Agreement 
Scheme 

Reference Acceptable Key Strengths 
Finite Fields           Elliptical Curves 

Diffie-Hellman 
 
(DH) or MOV 
 
 
 

SP 800-56A 
 
SP 800-135 

P = 2048 
 
Q = 224 or 256 

N: 224-255 and H=14 
N: 256-383 and H=16 
N: 384-511 and H=24 
N: 512+ and H=32 

RSA – based 
 

SP 800-131A N = 2048 

1.1.4  Hash Functions – The following hash functions are considered acceptable for use 

Digital Signature Generation Digital Signature 
Verification 

Non-digital signature 
generation applications 

SHA-224 
 
SHA-256 
 
SHA-384 

SHA-224 
 
SHA-256 
 
SHA-384 

SHA-1 
 
SHA-224 
 
SHA-256 



 

 
SHA-512 
 

 
SHA-512 
 

 
SHA-384 
 
SHA-512 

1.1.5 Digital Signature Algorithms – The following digital signature algorithms are 
considered acceptable for use. 

Digital 
Signature 
Algorithm 

FIPS 
Publication 

Digital 
Signature 
Generation 
Settings 

Digital 
Signature  
Verification 
Settings 

Relative 
Strengths 

Digital 
Signature 
Standard 

(DSA) 

FIPS 186-4 p>= 2048 

q = 224 

p>= 2048 

q = 224 

>= 112 bits 

RSA Digital 
Signature 

FIPS 186-4 2048 2048 >= 112 bits 

ECDSA FIPS 186-4 224 224 >= 112 bits 

1.1.6 Message Signature Algorithms – The following digital signature algorithms are 
considered acceptable for use. 

Hash Algorithms Hash Generation Hash Verification 

HMAC >= 112 bits >= 112 bits 

CMAC AES, 3DES AES, 3DES 

CCM and GCM/GMAC AES AES 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 



 

APPENDIX B 
 

From the effective date of this Agreement until the new functionalities set forth below are 
implemented, the Department of Revenue will provide the following reports: 
 
City Payment Journal Detail; 
City Payment Journal Summary; 
New License Report 
 
Within 30 days after the first month’s implementation of the JT2, the Department of Revenue 
will provide a new License Report and License Update Report containing at least the following 
fields: 
 
NEW LICENSE REPORT AND LICENSE UPDATE REPORT 

Fields displayed: 

o Region Code 
o Run Date 
o Report Start Date 
o Report End Date 
o Update Date 
o ID Type 
o ID 
o Account ID 
o Entity Name 
o Ownership Type 
o License ID 
o OTO/Applied For indicator 
o Bankruptcy Indicator 
o Filing Frequency 
o Issue Date 
o Account Start Date 
o Business Start Date 
o Arizona Start Date 
o Doc Loc Nbr 
o Accounting Method 
o Close Date 
o Close Code 
o Business Description 
o NAICS1 
o NAICS2 
o NAICS3 
o NAICS4 
o Mailing Street1 
o Mailing Street2 
o Mailing Street3 
o Mailing City 



 

o Mailing State 
o Mailing ZIP 
o Mailing Country 
o Mailing Phone Number 
o Mailing Address Add date 
o Mailing Address End Date 
o Audit Street1 
o Audit Street 2 
o Audit Street 3 
o Audit City 
o Audit State 
o Audit Zip 
o Audit Country 
o Audit Phone Number 
o Audit Address Add Date 
o Audit Address End Date 
o Location Code 
o Business Codes 
o Location Name (DBA) 
o Number of Units 
o Location Street 1 
o Location Street 2 
o Location Street 3 
o Location City 
o Location State 
o Location Zip 
o Location Country 
o Location Phone Number 
o Location Start Date 
o Location End Date 
o Primary Location Street 1 
o Primary Location Street 2 
o Primary Location Street 3 
o Primary Location City 
o Primary Location State 
o Primary Location Zip Code 
o Primary Location Country 
o Primary Location Phone Number 
o Primary Location Start Date 
o Primary Location End Date 
o Owner Name 
o Owner Title 
o Owner Name 2 
o Owner Title 2 
o Owner Name 3 
o Owner Title 3 



 

Within 30 days of the implementation of the TPT2, the Department of Revenue will provide the 
following reports with at least the fields indicated below: 
 
CITY PAYMENT JOURNAL 

o Run Date 
o Report Start Date 
o Report End Date 
o GL Accounting Period 
o Period End Date 
o Payment received date 
o Return received date 
o Payment process date 
o Return process date 
o Filing Frequency 
o License ID 
o Entity Name 
o Location Code 
o Location Name (DBA) 
o Location Street 1 
o Location Street 2 
o Location Street 3 
o Location City 
o Location State 
o Location Zip 
o Location Country 
o NAICS 
o Business Code 
o Doc Loc Nbr 
o Pmt Loc Nbr 
o Gross Receipts 
o Total Deductions 
o Tax or Fee Collected 
o P & I Collected 
o Audit Collections 
o Tran Type 
o Tran Subtype 
o Rev Type 
 

CITY PAYMENT JOURNAL SUMMARY 

o Region Code 
o Run Date 
o Report Start Date 
o Report End Date 
o GL Accounting Period 
o Business Code 
o Number of Accounts 



 

o Collections 
 
Within 30 days after the first month’s implementation of the TPT2, the following reports with at 
least the fields indicated below: 
 
NO MONEY REPORT 

o Region Code 
o GL Accounting Period 
o Period End Date 
o Payment received date 
o Return received date 
o Payment process date 
o Return process date 
o Filing Frequency 
o License ID 
o Entity Name 
o Location Code 
o Location Name (DBA) 
o Location Street 1 
o Location Street 2 
o Location Street 3 
o Location City 
o Location State 
o Location Zip 
o Location Country 
o NAICS 
o Business Code 
o Doc Loc Nbr 
o Pmt Loc Nbr 
o Gross Receipts 
o Total Deductions 
o Tax or Fee Collected 
o P & I Collected 
o Audit Collections 
o Tran Type 
o Tran Subtype 

 
DEDUCTION REPORT 

o Region Code 
o Run Date 
o Report Start Date 
o Report End Date 
o GL Accounting Period 
o Period End Date 
o License ID 
o Entity Name 



 

o Location Code 
o Location Name (DBA) 
o Business Code 
o Doc Loc Nbr 
o Deduction Code 
o Deduction Amount 
o Tran Type 
o Tran Subtype 
o Rev Type 

 
Within 30 days after taxes (subject to fund distributions) are collected, the Department of 
Revenue will provide the following report with at least the fields indicated below:   
 
FUND DISTRIBUTION REPORT 

o Region Code 
o Run Date 
o Report Start Date 
o Report End Date 
o GL Accounting Period 
o Period End Date 
o Payment Received Date 
o Return Received Date 
o Payment Processed Date 
o Return Processed Date 
o License ID 
o Entity Name 
o Location Code 
o Location Name (DBA) 
o Business Code 
o Doc Loc Nbr 
o Fund Allocation Code 
o Amount Distributed 
 

FUND DISTRIBUTION SUMMARY REPORT 

o Region Code 
o Run Date 
o Report Start Date 
o Report End Date 
o GL Accounting Period 
o Fund Allocation Code 
o Amount Distributed 
 



FI
N

A
L

ADOR 10196 (7/15) 

JT-2/UC-001 (7/15)

IMPORTANT!  Incomplete applications WILL NOT BE PROCESSED. 
• Please read form instructions while completing the application. 

Additional information and forms available at www.azdor.gov
• Required information is designated with an asterisk (*). 
• Return completed application AND applicable license fee(s) to 

address shown at left.
• For licensing questions regarding transaction privilege tax, call 

Taxpayer Information & Assistance: (602) 542-4576

License & Registration
ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

PO BOX 29032
Phoenix, AZ  85038-9032

SECTION A:  Business Information
1* Federal Employer Identification No. 

or Social Security No.  
if sole proprietor without employees

2* License Type – Check all that apply:

 Transaction Privilege Tax (TPT) 
 Withholding/Unemployment Tax (if hiring employees)

 Use Tax
 TPT for Cities ONLY

3* Type of Organization/Ownership – Tax exempt organizations must attach a copy of the Internal Revenue Service’s letter of determination.

  Individual/Sole Proprietorship  Subchapter S Corporation  Government  Joint Venture
  Corporation  Association  Estate  Receivership
  State of Inc.  Partnership  Trust

  Date of Inc. M M D D Y Y Y Y  Limited Liability Company  Limited Liability Partnership
4* Legal Business Name

5* Mailing Address – number and street City

|

State

|

ZIP Code

|
County/Region Country

6* Business Phone No. (with area code) 7 Email Address 8 Fax Number (with area code) 

9* Description of Business:  Describe merchandise sold or taxable activity.

10* NAICS Codes:  Available at www.azdor.gov

11* Did you acquire or change the legal form  of an existing business?

  No   Yes  You must complete Section F.

12* Are you a construction contractor?

  No   Yes (see bonding requirements)

BONDING REQUIREMENTS:  Prior to the issuance of a Transaction Privilege Tax license, new or out-of-state contractors are required to post a Taxpayer Bond for 
Contractors unless the contractor qualifies for an exemption from the bonding requirement. The primary type of contracting being performed determines the amount of bond 
to be posted. Bonds may also be required from applicants who are delinquent in paying Arizona taxes or have a history of delinquencies. Refer to the publication, Taxpayer 
Bonds, available online at www.azdor.gov or in Arizona Department of Revenue offices.

WITHHOLDING LICENSE ONLY
13* Withholding Physical Location 

Number and street (Do not use PO Box, PMB or route numbers)
City

|

State

|

ZIP Code

|
County/Region Country

 Continued on page 2 

FOR AGENCY USE ONLY CASHIER’S STAMP ONLY.  DO NOT MARK IN THIS AREA.

 New

 Change

 Revise

 Reopen

ACCOUNT NUMBER DLN

START TRANSACTION PRIVILEGE TAX

S/E DATE WITHHOLDING / SSN / EIN

COMPLETED DATE EMPLOYEE’S NAME

LIABILITY LIABILITY ESTABLISHED

You can file and pay for
this application online
at www.AZTaxes.gov. 

It is fast and secure.

ARIZONA JOINT TAX APPLICATION (JT-2)



FI
N

A
L

ADOR 10196 (7/15) 

JT-2/UC-001 (7/15)

 ARIZONA JOINT TAX APPLICATION (JT-2)

Name (as shown on page 1) FEIN or SSN (as shown on page 1)

SECTION B:  Identification of Owners, Partners, Corporate Officers Members/Managing Members  
or Officials of this Employing Unit

If you need more space, attach Additional Owner, Partner, Corporate Officer(s) form available at www.azdor.gov.  If the owner, partners, corporate officers or combination of 
partners or corporate officers, members and/or managing members own more than 50% of or control another business in Arizona, attach a list of the businesses, percentages 

owned and unemployment insurance account numbers or provide a Power of Attorney (Form 285) which must be filled out and signed by an authorized corporate officer.

O
w

n
e

r 
1

*Social Security No. *Title *Last Name  First Name Middle Intl.

 | |
*Street Address *City *State * % Owned

*ZIP Code *County *Phone Number (with area code) *Country

O
w

n
e

r 
 2

*Social Security No. *Title *Last Name  First Name Middle Intl.

 | |
*Street Address *City *State * % Owned

*ZIP Code *County *Phone Number (with area code) *Country

O
w

n
e

r 
 3

*Social Security No. *Title *Last Name  First Name Middle Intl.

 | |
*Street Address *City *State * % Owned

*ZIP Code *County *Phone Number (with area code) *Country

SECTION C:  Transaction Privilege Tax (TPT)
1* Date Business Started in Arizona

M M D D Y Y Y Y
2* Date Sales Began

M M D D Y Y Y Y
3 What is your anticipated annual income for your first twelve months of business?

4 Filing Frequency   Monthly    Quarterly    Seasonal    Annual      If seasonal filer, check the months for which you intend to do business:

 JAN  FEB  MAR  APR  MAY  JUN  JUL  AUG  SEP  OCT  NOV  DEC
5 Does your business sell tobacco products?
  Yes   Retailer OR  Distributor

6 TPT Filing Method
  Cash Receipts
  Accrual

7 Does your business sell new motor vehicle tires or vehicles?
  Yes  You will have to file Motor Vehicle Tire Fee form  

 available at www.azdor.gov
8* Tax Records Physical Location – number and street
 (Do not use PO Box, PMB or route numbers)

City State ZIP Code

| | |
County Country

|
9* Name of Contact * Phone Number (with area code) Extension 

|

SECTION D:  Transaction Privilege Tax (TPT) Physical Location
1* Business Name, “Doing Business As” or Trade Name at this Physical Location

2* Physical Location of Business or Commercial/Residential Rental 
Number and street (Do not use PO Box, PMB or route numbers)

City

|

State

|

ZIP Code

|
County/Region Country

Residential Rental Only – Number of Units Reporting City (if different than the physical location city)

3* Additional County/Region Indian Reservation:  County/Region and Indian Reservation Codes available at www.azdor.gov
County/
Region City

 Business Codes  (Include all codes that apply): See instructions.  Complete list available at www.azdor.gov
State/ 

County City
If you need more space, attach Additional Business Locations form available at www.azdor.gov



FI
N

A
L

ADOR 10196 (7/15) 

JT-2/UC-001 (7/15)

 ARIZONA JOINT TAX APPLICATION (JT-2)

Name (as shown on page 1) FEIN or SSN (as shown on page 1)

SECTION E:  Withholding & Unemployment Tax Applicants
1* Regarding THIS application, Date Employees First Hired in Arizona

M M D D Y Y Y Y
2 Are you liable for Federal Unemployment Tax?
  Yes  First year of liability:  YYYY

3 Are individuals performing services that are excluded from withholding 
or unemployment tax?

  Yes  Describe services:
 

4 Do you have an IRS ruling that grants an exclusion from 
Federal Unemployment Tax?

  Yes  Attach a copy of the Ruling Letter.

5 Do you have, or have you previously had, an Arizona unemployment tax number?
  No Unemployment Tax Number:
  Yes  Business Name:   
6 First calendar quarter Arizona employees were/will be hired and paid 

(indicate quarter as 1, 2, 3, 4):
Hired Year Hired Quarter Paid Year Paid Quarter

YYYY Q YYYY Q
7 When did/will you first pay a total of $1,500 or more gross wages in a calendar quarter? 

(indicate quarter as 1, 2, 3, 4)
Exceptions: $20,000 gross cash wages  Agricultural: $1,000 gross cash wages  Domestic/Household: not applicable to 501(c)(3) Non-Profit.

Year Quarter

YYYY Q
8 When did/will you first reach the 20th week of employing 1 or more individuals for some portion of a day in 

each of 20 different weeks in the same calendar year? (indicate quarter as 1, 2, 3, 4) 
Exceptions: 10 or more individuals Agricultural; 4 or more individuals 501(c)(3) Non-Profit; not applicable to Domestic/Household.

Year Quarter

YYYY Q
SECTION F:  Acquired Business Information
If you answered “Yes” to Section A, question 11, you must complete Section F.
1* Did you acquire or change all or part of an existing business?
  All
  Part

2*  Date of Acquisition

M M D D Y Y Y Y

3*  EIN of Business Under Previous Owner

4* Previous Owner’s Telephone Number 5* Name of Business Under Previous Owner 6* Name of Previous Owner

7* Did you change the legal form of all or part of the Arizona operations of 
your existing business? (e.g., change from sole proprietor to corporation or etc.)

  All
  Part

8* Date of Change

M M D D Y Y Y Y

9* EIN of Previous Legal Form

SECTION G:  AZTaxes.gov Security Administrator (authorized users)
By electing to register for www.AZTaxes.gov, you can have online access to account information, file and pay Arizona transaction privilege, use, and 
withholding  taxes.  You may also designate authorized users to access these services.  Please provide the name of the authorized user for AZTaxes.gov.
Name of Authorized User

Title

Email Address

Phone Number (with area code)

SECTION H:  Required Signatures
This application must be signed by either a sole owner, at least two partners, managing member or corporate officer legally responsible for the business, 
trustee or receiver or representative of an estate that has been listed in Section B.
Under penalty of perjury I (we), the applicant, declare that the information provided on this application is true and correct.  I (we) hereby 
authorize the security administrator, if one is listed in Section G, to access the AZTaxes.gov site for the business identified in Section A.  This authority is  
to remain in full force and effect until the Arizona Department of Revenue has received written termination notification from an authorized officer.
1 Print or Type Name 2 Print or Type Name

Title Title

Date Date

Signature Signature 

This application must be completed, signed, and returned as provided by A.R.S. § 23-722.
Equal Opportunity Employer/Program

This application available in alternative formats at Unemployment Insurance Tax Office.

PLEASE COMPLETE SECTION I: STATE/COUNTY & CITY LICENSE FEE WORKSHEET  
TO CALCULATE AND REMIT TOTAL AMOUNT DUE WITH THIS APPLICATION.



FI
N

A
L

ADOR 10196 (7/15) 

JT-2/UC-001 (7/15)

 ARIZONA JOINT TAX APPLICATION (JT-2)

Name (as shown on page 1) FEIN or SSN (as shown on page 1)

SECTION I:  State/County & City License Fee Worksheet
ALL FEES ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE.  Check for updates at azdor.gov.  

To calculate CITY FEE: Multiply No. of  Locations by the License Fee and enter sum in License Subtotal.

City/Town Code
No. of  
Loc’s

License 
Fee

License 
Subtotal City/Town Code

No. of  
Loc’s

License 
Fee

License 
Subtotal City/Town Code

No. of  
Loc’s

License 
Fee

License 
Subtotal

Apache Junction AJ $50.00 Goodyear GY $5.00 Sahuarita SA $5.00
Avondale AV $40.00 Guadalupe GU $2.00 San Luis SU $2.00
Benson BS $5.00 Hayden HY $5.00 Scottsdale SC $50.00
Bisbee BB $1.00 Holbrook HB $1.00 Sedona SE $2.00
Buckeye BE $2.00 Huachuca City HC $2.00 Show Low SL $2.00
Bullhead City BH $2.00 Jerome JO $2.00 Sierra Vista SR $1.00
Camp Verde CE $2.00 Kearny KN $2.00 Snowflake SN $2.00
Carefree CA $10.00 Kingman KM $2.00 Somerton SO $2.00
Casa Grande CG $2.00 Lake Havasu LH $5.00 South Tucson ST $2.00
Cave Creek CK $20.00 Litchfield Park LP $2.00 Springerville SV $5.00
Chandler CH $50.00 Mammoth MH $2.00 St. Johns SJ $2.00
Chino Valley CV $2.00 Marana MA $5.00 Star Valley SY $2.00
Clarkdale CD $2.00 Maricopa MP $2.00 Superior SI $2.00
Clifton CF $2.00 Mesa ME $30.00 Surprise SP $10.00
Colorado City CC $2.00 Miami MM $2.00 Taylor TL $2.00
Coolidge CL $2.00 Nogales NO $25.00 Tempe TE $50.00
Cottonwood CW $2.00 Oro Valley OR $12.00 Thatcher TC $2.00
Dewey/Humboldt DH $2.00 Page PG $2.00 Tolleson TN $2.00
Douglas DL $5.00 Paradise Valley PV $2.00 Tombstone TS $1.00
Duncan DC $2.00 Parker PK $2.00 Tucson TU $45.00
Eagar EG $10.00 Patagonia PA $25.00 Tusayan TY $2.00
El Mirage EM $15.00 Payson PS $2.00 Wellton WT $2.00
Eloy EL $10.00 Peoria PE $50.00 Wickenburg WB $2.00
Flagstaff FS $46.00 Phoenix PX $50.00 Willcox WC $25.00
Florence FL $2.00 Pima PM $2.00 Williams WL $2.00
Fountain Hills FH $2.00 Pinetop/Lakeside PP $2.00 Winkelman WM $2.00
Fredonia FD $10.00 Prescott PR $25.00 Winslow WS $10.00
Gila Bend GI $2.00 Prescott Valley PL $2.00 Youngtown YT $10.00
Gilbert GB $2.00 Quartzsite QZ $2.00 Yuma YM $2.00
Glendale GE 50.00 Queen Creek QC $2.00
Globe GL $2.00 Safford SF $2.00

Subtotal City License Fees 
(column 1) $

Subtotal City License Fees 
(column 2) $

Subtotal City License Fees 
(column 3) $

AA  TOTAL City License Fee(s) (column 1 + 2 + 3) .......................................................................................................................... $

No. of  Loc’s
Fee per 

Location TOTAL

BB TOTAL State License Fee(s):  Calculate by multiplying number of business locations by $12.00 $12.00 $
Residential Rental License Fees - Multiply the number of units per locations by $2.00  

($50.00 Annual Cap per license).  No. of  Units No. of  Loc’s City Fee

Residential Rental License-Chandler $ONLY CHANDLER, PHOENIX, and SCOTTSDALE 
need to use this section, and NOT the fee chart above, 

to calculate license fee(s).
The amount for each city CANNOT EXCEED $50.00

Residential Rental License-Phoenix $

Residential Rental License-Scottsdale $

CC TOTAL City Residential Rental License Fees (Add Chandler, Phoenix, & Scottsdale) ............................................................. $

DD TOTAL DUE (Add lines AA + BB + CC) ...................................................................................................................................... $
• Make check payable to Arizona Department of Revenue.
• Include FEIN or SSN on payment.
• Do not send cash.
• License will not be issued without full payment of fee.



FI
N

A
L

ADOR 10872 (5/15)   

TRANSACTION PRIVILEGE, USE, AND SEVERANCE TAX RETURN - (TPT-2)
Arizona Department of Revenue
PO Box 29010 - Phoenix, AZ  85038-9010
For assistance out of state or in the Phoenix area:  (602) 255-2060 or
Statewide, toll free area codes 520 and 928:  (800) 843-7196
 

 

TAXPAYER INFORMATION
 AMENDED RETURN  FINAL RETURN  CHECK HERE AND SIGN BELOW IF YOU
 (Cancel License)  HAVE NO GROSS RECEIPTS TO REPORT
BUSINESS NAME

C/O

MAILING ADDRESS

CITY STATE ZIP CODE

 ADDRESS CHANGED (MAILING ADDRESS ONLY) BUSINESS PHONE NUMBER

TPT-2 return is due the 20th day of the month following 
the month in which the transactions were conducted

TAXPAYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER  SSN   EIN

LICENSE NUMBER

PERIOD BEGINNING

M D D Y Y Y YM
PERIOD ENDING

M D D Y Y Y YM
REVENUE USE ONLY. DO NOT MARK IN THIS AREA

POSTMARK DATE RECEIVED DATE

Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is true, correct and 
complete.  Declaration of preparer (other than taxpayer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.

  
TAXPAYER PRINTED NAME

 The taxpayer designates the individual listed below as the person to contact to schedule an 
 audit of this return and authorize the disclosure of confidential information to this individual.  

  
TAXPAYER SIGNATURE

  
DATE

  
PAID PREPARER’S SIGNATURE (OTHER THAN TAXPAYER)

 
TAXPAYER PHONE NO.

  
TITLE

  
PAID PREPARER’S TIN

  
PAID PREPARER’S PHONE NO.

PLEASE MAKE CHECK PAYABLE TO ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

NOTE: A TRANSACTION DETAIL PAGE IS REQUIRED OR THE RETURN WILL NOT PROCESS CORRECTLY AND PENALTIES MAY APPLY.

PAGE 1 OF   

AA NET AZ/COUNTY TAX (PAGE 2, LINE MM, COLUMN (M)) ............................................................................................................................................................................................................

BB NET CITY TAX (PAGE 3, LINE RR, COLUMN (M)) .........................................................................................................................................................................................................................

CC NET TAX DUE ON THIS RETURN (LINE AA + LINE BB = LINE CC) .............................................................................................................................................................................................

DD TPT ESTIMATED PAYMENTS TO BE USED ON THIS RETURN (JUNE RETURN ONLY, DUE IN JULY) ....................................................................................................................................

EE TAX DUE NET OF TPT ESTIMATED PAYMENTS (LINE CC - LINE DD = LINE EE) ......................................................................................................................................................................

FF TOTAL AMOUNT REMITTED WITH THIS RETURN........................................................................................................................................................................................................................ $



FI
N

A
L

ADOR 10872 (5/15)   

PAGE 2 OF   TRANSACTION PRIVILEGE, USE, AND SEVERANCE TAX RETURN - (TPT-2) LICENSE NUMBER:  
 STATE (AZ) /COUNTY TRANSACTION DETAIL (See Table 1 on the Tax Rate Table, www.azdor.gov)

(A) (B) 

REG. 
CODE

(C) 

NAME OF  
REGION

(D) 

BUS. 
CODE

(E) 

DESC. OF  
BUS. ACTIVITY

 (F) 

GROSS  
RECEIPTS

(G)
DEDUCTIONS  

FROM 
SCHEDULE A

(H) 
 

(F) - (G) = (H)
NET TAXABLE

(I)
AZ / 

COUNTY 
TAX RATE

(J) 

(H) X (I) = (J)
TOTAL TAX

(K)
ACCTNG
CREDIT  

RATE

(L) 
(H) X (K) = (L)
ACCOUNTING 

CREDIT

(M)
(J) - (L) = (M)
AZ/COUNTY  

TAX DUE

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

GG SUBTOTAL ..........................................................................

HH TOTALS FROM ADDITIONAL AZ/COUNTY PAGE(S) .......

II TOTAL (LINE GG + LINE HH = LINE II) ..............................

JJ EXCESS TAX COLLECTED ..............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

KK EXCESS TAX ACCOUNTING CREDIT:  (SEE INSTRUCTIONS) .....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

LL NET AZ/COUNTY EXCESS TAX COLLECTED (LINE JJ, COLUMN (M) - LINE KK, COLUMN (M)) .............................................................................................................................................................................

MM NET AZ/COUNTY TAX (LINE II, COLUMN (M) + LINE LL, COLUMN (M)) ......................................................................................................................................................................................................................



FI
N

A
L

ADOR 10872 (5/15)   

PAGE 3 OF   TRANSACTION PRIVILEGE, USE, AND SEVERANCE TAX RETURN - (TPT-2) LICENSE NUMBER:  
 CITY TRANSACTION DETAIL (See Table 2 on the Tax Rate Table, www.azdor.gov)

(A) 

LOC. 
CODE

(B) 

CITY 
CODE

(C) 
 
 

NAME OF CITY

(D) 

BUS. 
CODE

(E) 

DESC. OF  
BUS. ACTIVITY

(F) 
 

GROSS RECEIPTS

(G) 
DEDUCTIONS  

FROM 
SCHEDULE A

(H) 

(F) - (G) = (H)
NET TAXABLE

(I)
CITY
 TAX 
RATE

(J) 

(H) X (I) = (J)
TOTAL TAX

(K) (L) 

CITY 
CREDIT

(M)
(J) - (L) = (M)

CITY
 TAX DUE

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

NN CITY SUBTOTAL ..................................................................................

OO CITY SUBTOTALS FROM ADDITIONAL CITY PAGE(S) ....................

PP CITY TOTAL (LINE NN + LINE OO = LINE PP) ...................................

QQ CITY EXCESS TAX COLLECTED .....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

RR NET CITY TAX (LINE PP, COLUMN (M) + LINE QQ, COLUMN (M)) ...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................



FI
N

A
L

ADOR 10872 (5/15)   

TRANSACTION PRIVILEGE, USE, AND SEVERANCE TAX RETURN - (TPT-2) LICENSE NUMBER:    PAGE 2A  OF   
ADDITIONAL TRANSACTIONS

 STATE (AZ) /COUNTY TRANSACTION DETAIL (See Table 1 on the Tax Rate Table, www.azdor.gov)
(A) (B) 

REG. 
CODE

(C) 

NAME OF  
REGION

(D) 

BUS.
CODE

(E) 

DESC. OF  
BUS. ACTIVITY

 (F) 

GROSS  
RECEIPTS

(G) 
DEDUCTIONS  

FROM 
SCHEDULE A

(H) 
 

(F) - (G) = (H)
NET TAXABLE

(I)
AZ / 

COUNTY 
TAX RATE

(J) 

(H) X (I) = (J)
TOTAL TAX

(K)
ACCTNG
CREDIT  

RATE

(L) 
(H) X (K) = (L)
ACCOUNTING 

CREDIT

(M)
(J) - (L) = (M)
AZ/COUNTY  

TAX DUE

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

AZ/COUNTY SUBTOTAL .................................................. $ $ $ $

ADD SUBTOTALS OF AZ/COUNTY ADDITIONAL TRANSACTIONS TO THE 2ND PAGE OF RETURN



FI
N

A
L

ADOR 10872 (5/15)   

TRANSACTION PRIVILEGE, USE, AND SEVERANCE TAX RETURN - (TPT-2) LICENSE NUMBER:    PAGE 3A  OF   
ADDITIONAL TRANSACTIONS

 CITY TRANSACTION DETAIL (See Table 2 on the Tax Rate Table, www.azdor.gov)
(A)
 

LOC. 
CODE

(B) 

CITY 
CODE

(C) 
 
 

NAME OF CITY

(D) 

BUS.
CODE

(E) 

DESC. OF 
BUS. ACTIVITY

(F) 
 

GROSS RECEIPTS

(G) 
DEDUCTIONS  

FROM 
SCHEDULE A

(H) 

(F) - (G) = (H)
NET TAXABLE

(I)
CITY
 TAX 
RATE

(J) 

(H) X (I) = (J)
TOTAL TAX

(K) (L) 

CITY 
CREDIT

(M)
(J) - (L) = (M)

CITY
 TAX DUE

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

CITY SUBTOTAL .................................................................................. $ $ $ $

ADD SUBTOTALS OF CITY ADDITIONAL TRANSACTIONS TO THE 3RD PAGE OF RETURN



FI
N

A
L

ADOR 10872 (5/15)   

TPT-2 – SCHEDULE A DEDUCTIONS – STATE/COUNTY LICENSE NUMBER:    Page   of   
TRANSACTION PRIVILEGE, USE, AND SEVERANCE TAX 

 STATE (AZ) /COUNTY DEDUCTIONS DETAIL 
(A) (B) 

REGION  
CODE

(C) 

BUSINESS 
CODE

(D) 
 

DEDUCTION 
CODE

(E) 
 
 

DEDUCTION AMOUNT

(F) 
 

DESCRIPTION OF  
DEDUCTION CODE

1 $
2 $
3 $
4 $
5 $
6 $
7 $
8 $
9 $

10 $
11 $
12 $
13 $
14 $
15 $
16 $
17 $
18 $
19 $
20 $
21 $
22 $
23 $
24 $
25 $
26 $
27 $
28 $
29 $
30 $
31 $
32 $
33 $
34 $
35 $

AA SUBTOTAL OF DEDUCTIONS ............................................................... $
BB DEDUCTION TOTALS FROM ADDITIONAL AZ/COUNTY PAGE(S)  ... $
CC TOTAL DEDUCTIONS (LINE AA + LINE BB = LINE CC) ...................... $

TOTAL MUST EQUAL TOTAL ON PAGE 2, LINE  II, COLUMN G



FI
N

A
L

ADOR 10872 (5/15)   

TPT-2 – SCHEDULE A DEDUCTIONS – CITY LICENSE NUMBER:    Page   of   
TRANSACTION PRIVILEGE, USE, AND SEVERANCE TAX 

 CITY DEDUCTIONS DETAIL 
(A) 

LOCATION  
CODE

(B) 

CITY
CODE

(C) 

BUSINESS 
CODE

(D) 
 

DEDUCTION 
CODE

(E) 
 
 

DEDUCTION AMOUNT

(F) 
 

DESCRIPTION OF  
DEDUCTION CODE

1 $
2 $
3 $
4 $
5 $
6 $
7 $
8 $
9 $

10 $
11 $
12 $
13 $
14 $
15 $
16 $
17 $
18 $
19 $
20 $
21 $
22 $
23 $
24 $
25 $
26 $
27 $
28 $
29 $
30 $
31 $
32 $
33 $
34 $
35 $

AA SUBTOTAL OF DEDUCTIONS ............................................................... $
BB DEDUCTION TOTALS FROM ADDITIONAL CITY PAGE(S) ................. $
CC TOTAL DEDUCTIONS (LINE AA + LINE BB = LINE CC) ...................... $

TOTAL MUST EQUAL TOTAL ON PAGE 3, LINE PP, COLUMN G





1

Lisa Garcia

From: Lee Grafstrom <lgrafstrom@azleague.org>
Sent: Wednesday, May 27, 2015 11:30 AM
To: Finance Directors; Abigail Yacoben; Al Holler; Angel Suarez; Anne Wenk; Brandie 

Forcum; Crystal Hadfield; Dave Schaaf; Don Zelechowski; Esmeralda Saldana; Evan 
Nelson; Gary Tasky; Jane Fuller; Joe Lewandowski; Joel Peterson; John Olsen; Karen 
Rounsborg; Kathleen Jackson; Lars Johnson; Loretta Kearns; Luis Pedroza; Martha 
Salgado; Matt Dunbar; Michelle Cruz; Mickey Tait; Miguel Teposte; Mike Miller; Pam 
Reinke; Pamela Pieri; Phil Falcosky; Phil Montalvo; Ralph Villa; Ranbir Cheema; Robb 
Swanson; Roger Okin; Russell Young ; Sandy Schilling; Sherry Schurhammer; Susan 
Matousek; Tabatha Miller; Ted Soltis; Terry Hoglund; Vern Crisler; Vicki Rios; Yvonne 
Davila-Paredes

Subject: New IGA with DOR for TPT Administration
Attachments: IGA 2015 cities v 8.doc; Cities IGA APP v4.doc; City IGA Appendix C JT2.pdf; City IGA 

Appendix C TPT2.pdf

Hello: 
 
The attached documents constitute a new inter‐governmental agreement (IGA) between your city/town and the 
Department of Revenue (DOR) related to the administration of Transaction Privilege Tax, as required under A.R.S. § 42‐
6001. You will soon be receiving a notice from the Department of Revenue informing you that your current IGA with the 
Department is being cancelled effective June 30, 2015. That agreement is being replaced with the attached new 
agreement and appendices which are effective from and after July 1, 2015. 
 
If your city/town is currently on the State collection program, this agreement will go into full effect in all aspects from 
and after July 1, 2015. If your city/town is currently not on the State collection program, this agreement will go into 
effect on July 1, 2015 in all aspects that are not contrary to your status as a self‐collecting city and will continue with 
those limitations until such time that DOR takes over TPT administration for your city/town. 
 
This IGA and its appendices must be approved by your city/town council not later than June 30, 2015. This IGA only 
needs to be approved once by your council, and is considered effective on July 1, 2015 provided the council acts prior to 
that date. 
 
Unlike previous versions of the IGA which were drafted solely by the Department, these documents have been 
negotiated and agreed upon by both DOR and a consortium of city and town representatives and cannot be altered in 
way. 
 
Please do the following, not later than June 30, 2015: 
 
1) Complete the agreement for your city/town by filling in the blanks in the body of the IGA: 
(a) Your city/town name and the date of Council action on the first page of the IGA 
(b) Contact email address in Section 2.1:  DOR will send this contact the list of DOR employees authorized to receive 
city/town taxpayer information 
(c) Contact email address in Section 3.1:  DOR will contact this address with any questions regarding city/town 
employees authorized to receive Confidential Information 
(d) Contact mailing address in Section 19(a): DOR will use this contact when sending any notice required under this IGA 
(e) Typed identification of the person authorized by the city/town to sign this IGA in Section 31.2 
 



2

2) There is an Excel spreadsheet attached that captures the contact information required in step 1(b), (c) and (d) above. 
Please insert your IGA contact information in this spreadsheet and return it to the League ASAP. 
 
3) Print the completed Agreement and the Appendices and present them for approval by your city/town council, not 
later than June 30, 2015. 
Sample explanatory language for your city/town council has also been provided to accompany the IGA if you wish. This 
language can be used as a council memo in the format provided, or can be incorporated in the council memo format 
used by your city/town. 
 
4) Return TWO SIGNED copies of the IGA to the DOR City Unit at the address noted in Section 19(b) immediately after 
the council action. 
 
Arizona Department of Revenue 
Attn: City Unit 
Division Code 16 
1600 W. Monroe 
Phoenix, AZ 85007 
 
5) Once the IGA has been signed by the Attorney General, DOR will return one signed copy to the city/town for your 
permanent records. 
 
If you have any questions, please let me know. 
 
 
Thank you, 
Lee Grafstrom 
Tax Policy Analyst 
League of Arizona Cities and Towns 
1820 W Washington St. 
Phoenix, AZ 85007‐3208 
602‐258‐5786 Office 
480‐510‐4392 Cell 
www.azleague.org 
 
 
Pursuant to A.R.S. 39‐121, this email and any attachments may be considered a public record subject to public 
inspection. Please be advised that the public, including news media, may request access to email sent and received 
pursuant to the Arizona Public Records law and the Freedom of Information Act. 
 
CONFIDENTIAL AND PRIVILEGED 
This transmission (including attachments) is covered by the Electronic Communications Privacy Act, 18 USC Sections 
2510‐2521. The information contained in this transmission may contain privileged and confidential information. It is 
intended only for the use of the person(s) named above. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified 
that any review, dissemination, distribution or duplication of this communication  is strictly prohibited. If you are not the
intended recipient, please contact the sender by reply email and destroy all copies of the original message. 
 
‐ Email scanned by Sophos Anti‐Virus 
‐ Website: http://www.florenceaz.gov 
 
Disclaimer # 6955‐149 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
7c. 

MEETING DATE:  June 15, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Utilities Department  
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  John V. Mitchell, Utilities Director 
 
SUBJECT: Ratification of Change Order Nos. 3 through 13  
                   with Sun Western Contractors for Well 3B         
                   Improvements. 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
Subject: Ratification of Change Orders with Sun Western Contractors Meeting date: June 15, 2015 
Page 1 of 2 
 

 
Motion to ratify Change Order Nos. 3 through 13 with Sun Western Contractors, for 
$31,368.95, for a total project cost not to exceed $1,641,242.48. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Sun Western Contractors is under contract to construct Well 3B.  In order to insure that 
the project would stay on schedule, staff followed the requirements of the purchasing 
policy manual which grants signature authority to the Town Manager for amounts 
between $5,000 and $24,999.  Staff now understands that any change order that 
modifies an approved contract amount must be submitted to Council for approval. 
Therefore, a contract summary is provided below for ratification. 
 

 Amount Council Approval 

Original Contract $1,576,264.67 Approved by Council on, 4/21/2014 
Change Order No. 2   $33,608.86 Approved by Council on 8/19/ 2014 
Change Order No. 3   $294.25 To be ratified 
Change Order No. 4   $8,849.24 To be ratified 
Change Order No. 5   $1,732.10 To be ratified 
Change Order No. 6  ($5,000.00)  To be ratified 
Change Order No. 7  ($3,766.92) To be ratified 
Change Order No. 8    $5,199.29 To be ratified 
Change Order No. 9    $12,366.32 To be ratified 
Change Order No. 10    $10,822.66 To be ratified 
Change Order No. 11    $2,817.27 To be ratified 
Change Order No. 12    $7,054.74 To be ratified 
Change Order No. 13   ($9,000.00) To be ratified 

Amended Amount   $1,641,242.48  
 
Change Order No. 1 is not used.  It is placeholder for direct reimbursement to contractor 
for cost of construction water used.  It does not impact the contract amount. 



Subject: Ratification of Change Orders with Sun Western Contractors Meeting date: June 1, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The amount of Change Order Nos. 3 through 13 is $31,368.95, a 4.1% increase over 
the original contract amount.  There is funding in the 2014/2015 Fiscal Year budget to 
complete this work. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of this item. 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
 
Sun Western Contractors Contract 
Change Order Nos. 2 through 13 
Approval Form 















































































































































































Change Order Approval Form 
Sun Western Contractors 

Well 3B Improvements 
 
 
 
This approval extends to Change Orders 3 thru 13 with Sun Western Contractors for the 
Well 3B Improvements, Project Number U-34. The amount of this approval is 
$31,368.95. Change Orders 3 thru 13 are attached for reference. 
 
Original Contract Amount         $ 1,576,264.67 – approved by Council 4/21/2014 
CO #2                                       $      33,608.86 – approved by Council 8/19/2014 
CO #3 thru #13                         $      31,368.95 – ratified by Council 6/15/2015 
Amended Contract Amount   $ 1,641,242.48 
 
 
 
Town of Florence 
P.O. Box 2670 
Florence, AZ 85131 
 
 
 
By:  ________________________________  
         Charles A. Montoya, Town Manager    
 
 
 
Date:  ______________________________   
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
  Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
  Town Attorney 
 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
7d. 

MEETING DATE:  June 15, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Finance 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Mike Farina, Finance Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Resolution No. 1526-15: Signatory for all Town  
                     bank accounts 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
Subject:  Resolution No.  1526-15 Bank Signatories                            Meeting Date:  June 15, 2015 
Page 1 of 2 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                        
 

 
Motion to adopt Resolution 1526-15:  A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING MAYOR TOM J. RANKIN, 
TOWN MANAGER CHARLES A. MONTOYA AND INTERIM FINANCE DIRECTOR 
MARCIA GOERDT TO ACT AS SIGNATORIES FOR THE TRANSACTION OF 
BUSINESS ON ALL TOWN OF FLORENCE BANK ACCOUNTS, AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
A resolution must be adopted naming staff authorized to sign on the Town’s bank 
accounts. Finance Director Mike Farina will be departing on July 3, 2015.  New 
signature cards need to be completed. 
 
Currently the Mayor, Town Manager and Finance Director are authorized signers.  This 
resolution removes outgoing Finance Director Mike Farina and adds Interim Finance 
Director Marcia Goerdt as the appointed signatories for banking functions. 
 
The following accounts are included: National Bank of Arizona General Checking 
Account, National Bank of Arizona Payroll Account, Local Governmental Investment 
Pool #7, Local Governmental Investment Pool #5, Stifel, Nicolaus & Company Inc. 
Investment Account. 
 
This will be effective July 4, 2015. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 



Subject:  Resolution No.  1526-15 Bank Signatories                            Meeting Date:  June 15, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                        
 

 
Adopt Resolution No. 1526-15. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1526-15 



RESOLUTION NO. 1526-15 
 

A RESOLUTION OF TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING MAYOR TOM J. RANKIN, 
TOWN MANAGER CHARLES A. MONTOYA AND INTERIM FINANCE 
DIRECTOR MARCIA GOERDT TO ACT AS SIGNATORIES FOR THE 
TRANSACTION OF BUSINESS ON THE TOWN OF FLORENCE 
BANKING ACCOUNTS, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 
 WHEREAS, an interim Finance Director has been appointed effective July 4, 
2015, and it is therefore necessary to approve new signature authorizations for the 
Town’s bank accounts. 
 
 BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, that Mayor Tom J. Rankin, Town Manager Charles 
A. Montoya, and Interim Finance Director Marcia Goerdt are authorized as signatories 
for the following bank accounts: 
 

1. National Bank of Arizona - General Checking and Investment Account  
2. National Bank of Arizona Payroll Checking Account 
3. State of Arizona Local Governmental Investment Pool-All Accounts 
4. Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Inc. Investment Account 
 

The immediate operation of this resolution is necessary for preservation of the public 
peace, health and safety of the Town of Florence and an emergency is hereby declared 
to exist; and this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from the offer of its passage 
and approval by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence with an effective date of 
July 4, 2015. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, this 15th day of June 2015. 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
___________________________  __________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk    Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney 



MINUTES OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, 
MAY 4, 2015, AT 6:00 PM, IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, LOCATED AT 775 
NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Rankin called the meeting to order at 5:32 pm. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Present:  Rankin, Walter, Woolridge, Hawkins, Guilin, Anderson 
Absent:  Montaño 
 
MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
May 4, 2015 
Page 1 of 11 

Mayor Rankin called for a moment of silence. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Rankin led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the 
Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual 
Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask 
staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  
However, members of the Council shall not discuss or take action on any matter 
during an open call to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for 
discussion and legal action. 
 
Mr. Art Buckley, Florence resident, stated that he believes the Council and staff efforts 
who have met with citizens to explain Proposition 407 have focused on the negatives 
and does not believe that this was the wisest way to encourage a positive vote.  He 
would like to see the Council appoint someone as soon as possible to fill the vacancy 
and guide them to assist with the upcoming election in a positive manner.  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS AND PRESENTATIONS 
 
Public Hearing on an application of Hitches Associates Architects, on behalf of 
Matthew Ritter and James and Janet Mannato for a zone change on 
approximately .55 acres, located at the northeast corner of 3rd Street and Phoenix 
Street, from Neighborhood Multi Family Zoning District (R-2) to Highway 
Business Commercial Zoning District (B-2); and First reading of Ordinance No. 
629-15. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
May 4, 2015 
Page 2 of 11 

Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk read Ordinance No. 629-15 by title 
only. 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING A ZONE CHANGE ON .55 ACRES, FROM NEIGHBORHOOD MULTI-
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL (R-2) ZONING DISTRICT TO HIGHWAY BUSINESS 
COMMERCIAL (B-2) ZONING DISTRICT (APN 200-47-0250). 
 
Mr. Mark Eckhoff, Community Development Director, stated that the Taco Bell 
Corporation has been interested in locating a restaurant in Florence and has found a 
viable location on the northwest corner of 3rd Street and State Route 79.  He stated that 
it is vital to combine the three parcels to accommodate the site improvements, setbacks 
and Arizona Department of Transportation required right-of-way.  The purpose of this 
application is to obtain proper zoning on the largest of the three parcels of land for the 
proposed restaurant. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that the parcels are designated as Highway Mixed Use (HMU) in the 
Town’s 2020 General Plan and the HMU designation is primarily intended to assist with 
revitalization of older areas and to provide for a mix of highway-oriented retail goods 
and commercial services. The Planning and Zoning Commission found that the zone 
change for Taco Bell is in compliance with the Town’s 2020 General Plan and is in the 
interest of general welfare, health and safety of the public.  The Planning and Zoning 
Commission has forwarded a unanimous favorable recommendation with stipulations on 
the zone change to the Town Council. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins inquired if the restaurant will be a combination of Taco Bell 
and Kentucky Fried Chicken. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that at this time it is planned as a single branded restaurant. 
 
Councilmember Anderson inquired if there has been any response to the notices that 
were sent out regarding the zone change. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that the Community Development Department did receive one phone 
call regarding the relocation of the Happy Adobe but has not received anything in writing 
nor did the caller desire to leave their contact information regarding their concern for 
follow up. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired where the access off Highway 79 will be located. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that Taco Bell is working with ADOT and is looking to use the 
existing driveway off Highway 79 and then will add a second driveway off 3rd Street. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if the existing homes on the parcels are on the historical registry. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
May 4, 2015 
Page 3 of 11 

Mr. Eckhoff stated that the homes are not on any registries and that the owners have 
not expressed any desire to place them on a registry. 
 
Mayor Rankin opened the public hearing.  There were no public comments.  Mayor 
Rankin closed the public hearing. 
 
Presentation on Central Arizona Regional Transit (CART) Services 
 
Mr. Jess Knudson, Assistant Town Manager, stated that CART was established in July 
2010, as a pilot project.  In June 2011, CART became a regional partnership between 
the City of Coolidge, Central Arizona College (CAC), the Town of Florence and Pinal 
County.  The annual funding from each of the partners is $23,558 which equals 4% of 
the operating budget. He stated that the remaining 96% of the budget is funded by the 
federal government.  The City of Coolidge is the operator of the program and the 
applicant for CART federal funding. 
 
Mr. Knudson stated that the CART program currently has five stops in Florence, one 
stop in Coolidge, one stop at CAC and a few stops in Casa Grande.  Some of the stops 
in Florence and Casa Grande are under performing and the CART Board is evaluating 
options to improve service.  The buses run Monday through Friday from 5:00 am to 8:00 
pm with a one-way fare of $1.00 for kids and $2.00 for adults.  He stated that a majority 
of the CART riders are students and commuters and the program is providing a 
valuable service to the disabled community and individuals without another means of 
transportation. 
 
Mr. Knudson stated that the CART Board is currently working with ADOT to solicit a 
consultant to assist in creating a five-year transit plan, requesting funding to build bus 
stop shelters and update the stops along the CART route.  He stated that Option 1 has 
new stops that would include a stop on Stewart Street, Pinal County Courthouse, then 
across the Main Street extension with a stop in the vicinity of the new library/aquatic 
center/Town Hall, and a location on South Main Street.  He stated Option 2 would stay 
on Main Street with a loop at the Pinal County Courthouse, then back on Main Street 
heading south.  He stated that Town staff is recommending Option 1. 
 
Mr. Knudson stated that the CART Board strategy is to grow the service slowly and 
carefully to ensure sustainability, analyze the demand for services in San Tan Valley 
and surrounding areas, minimize route times, and provide consistent and reliable 
service. He stated that the long-term goal of CART is to become a regional link for 
communities who host an intercity passenger transit service with each community 
having one stop that travels between cities. 
 
Vice-Mayor Walter inquired as to how service can be expanded into the Anthem and 
Florence Garden areas. 
 
Mr. Knudson stated that currently a van is used to bring citizens to the Senior Center 
from the Anthem and Florence Garden areas and from there a rider can gain access to 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
May 4, 2015 
Page 4 of 11 

CART.  He stated that the current CART program is not able to service these areas as it 
would add significant travel time to the routes which would hinder usage for those 
needing to travel outside the Florence boundaries. 
 
Vice-Mayor Walter stated that the children who are eligible for Title 1 Education and 
cannot gain access to transit services are losing out on their opportunity to further their 
education.  She inquired if the CART Board has looked at these non-serviced areas 
within the Town of Florence and if so, what is the plan to provide service. 
 
Mr. Knudson stated that the CART Board is looking at options that would connect 
students to CAC and is looking for a funding partner that would allow the program to 
expand to provide timely service to CAC, Casa Grande and Coolidge areas. 
 
Vice-Mayor Walter stated that there are grant sources available such as Gila County 
that would assist with purchasing a 14-person van that can be driven by a licensed 
driver. 
 
Mr. Knudson stated that staff can research providing an additional service for a specific 
destination serviced by the Town of Florence, should Council desire staff to do so.  
 
Vice-Mayor Walter stated that she would like to see Council look into providing bus type 
services to the non-serviced areas of Florence. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that he agreed with Vice-Mayor Walter and inquired as 
to what the cost would be. 
 
Mr. Knudson stated that in previous research, the cost provided by ADOT was 
estimated at approximately $120,000.   
 
Councilmember Anderson stated that it would be a service that would be used by the 
Anthem, Magic Ranch and Copper Basin residents.  It would be an excellent resource 
to bring patrons to the area with the new Library and Aquatic Center opening soon. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that research needs to be done to ensure that demand is there for 
the service that would justify the expense.  He stated that the Town has vehicles and 
needs to work with the CART Board to utilize equipment that is currently owned.   
 
Mr. Knudson stated that previous research in a citizen survey provided the need to gain 
transit to the Senior Center from Florence Gardens and the van service is meeting 
those needs.  He stated that the Town is not experiencing any calls for demand for 
transit service from the Anthem area at this time.   
 
Proclamation declaring Florence’s pride in those who have enlisted in the military 
and urge all citizens to continue to support our military service personnel and the 
families of those who are serving in our armed forces. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
May 4, 2015 
Page 5 of 11 

Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, read the Proclamation. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that the Town has come together to support its young members 
who are graduating from High School and will be entering the arm forces. 
 
Mayor Rankin presented proclamations to John Clark, Harmony English, Kameron Hall, 
Valentin Madrigal and Emilio Salazar.  
 
CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as 
part of the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public 
objects at the time the agenda item is called.  
 
Approval of accepting the register of demands ending March 31, 2015, in the 
amount of $3,693,094.17. 
 
Proclamation naming April 24, 2015 as Arbor Day in the Town of Florence, 
Arizona, urging all citizens to celebrate Arbor Day, to support efforts to protect 
our trees and woodlands, and to plant trees to gladden the heart and promote the 
well-being of this and future generations. 
 
Proclamation naming the month of May as Foster Month in the Town of Florence, 
Arizona, and urging all citizens to do something positive that will help change a 
lifetime for children and youth in foster care. 
 
Resolution No. 1507-15:   
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk read Resolution No. 1507-15 by 
title only. 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING THE FINAL PLAT FOR MERRILL RANCH UNIT 53; REQUIRING THE 
PROVISION OF AN INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT ASSURANCE OR 
WITHHOLDING OF RECORDATION TO SECURE THE SATISFACTORY 
CONSTRUCTION, INSTALLATION AND DEDICATION OF REQUIRED 
IMPROVEMENTS; ESTABLISHING A DEADLINE FOR REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS 
TO BE COMPLETED; AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION BY THE TOWN MANAGER 
OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS.   
 
Resolution No. 1508-15:   
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, read Resolution No. 1508-15 by 
title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING THE FINAL PLAT FOR ANTHEM AT MERRILL RANCH UNIT 36; 
REQUIRING THE PROVISION OF AN INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
May 4, 2015 
Page 6 of 11 

ASSURANCE OR WITHHOLDING OF RECORDATION TO SECURE THE 
SATISFACTORY CONSTRUCTION, INSTALLATION AND DEDICATION OF 
REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS; ESTABLISHING A DEADLINE FOR REQUIRED 
IMPROVEMENTS TO BE COMPLETED; AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION BY THE 
TOWN MANAGER OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS.   
 
Resolution No. 1509-15:   
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, read Resolution No. 1509-15 by 
title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING THE MAP OF DEDICATION FOR CONSTITUTION WAY PHASE 2 AND 
NATIONAL WAY, REQUIRING THE PROVISION OF AN INFRASTRUCTURE 
IMPROVEMENT ASSURANCE OR WITHHOLDING OF RECORDATION TO SECURE 
THE SATISFACTORY CONSTRUCTION, INSTALLATION AND DEDICATION OF 
REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS; ESTABLISHING A DEADLINE FOR REQUIRED 
IMPROVEMENTS TO BE COMPLETED; AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION BY THE 
TOWN MANAGER OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS. 
 
Resolution No. 1510-15:   
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, read Resolution No. 1510-15 by 
title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING THE MAP OF DEDICATION FOR SPIRIT LOOP PHASE 4, REQUIRING 
THE PROVISION OF AN INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT ASSURANCE OR 
WITHHOLDING OF RECORDATION TO SECURE THE SATISFACTORY 
CONSTRUCTION, INSTALLATION AND DEDICATION OF REQUIRED 
IMPROVEMENTS; ESTABLISHING A DEADLINE FOR REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS 
TO BE COMPLETED; AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION BY THE TOWN MANAGER 
OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS. 
 
Resolution No. 1511-15:   
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, read Resolution No. 1511-15 by 
title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING THE RE-SUBDIVISION OF LOTS 36-42 INCLUSIVE AND TRACT A, 
ANTHEM AT MERRILL RANCH PHASE 1A, UNIT 15; REQUIRING THE PROVISION 
OF AN INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT ASSURANCE OR WITHHOLDING OF 
RECORDATION TO SECURE THE SATISFACTORY CONSTRUCTION, 
INSTALLATION AND DEDICATION OF REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS; 
ESTABLISHING A DEADLINE FOR REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS TO BE 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
May 4, 2015 
Page 7 of 11 

COMPLETED; AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION BY THE TOWN MANAGER OF 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS.  
 
Approval of awarding a contract to Blount Contracting, Inc., for the South 
Wastewater Treatment Plant lagoon closure, in an amount not to exceed 
$99,500.00.  

On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Guilin, and 
carried to approve the Consent Agenda, as written.  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Resolution No. 1516-15:  

Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, read Resolution No. 1516-15 by 
title only.  

A RESOLUTION GRANTING APPROVAL TO THE ISSUANCE OF ONE OR MORE 
SERIES OF THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, INC. TAX-EXEMPT AND/OR TAXABLE EDUCATION REVENUE 
BONDS (ACADEMY OF MATH & SCIENCE PROJECTS), SERIES 2015C, IN AN 
AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED $7,950,000 TO FINANCE 
THE ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION, IMPROVEMENT AND EQUIPPING OF 
EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES FOR ACADEMY OF MATHEMATICS AND SCIENCE, 
INC. AND ITS AFFILIATE, MATH AND SCIENCE SUCCESS ACADEMY, INC. 

Ms. Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst, stated that the request is the third in a series 
which would allow the Florence Industrial Development Authority to issue bonds up to 
$7,900,000 for the acquisition, construction, renovation, improvement and equipment of 
two locations in Tucson, Arizona, for use in their charter school operations.  She stated 
that the Academy of Mathematics and Science Affiliated Network operates two charter 
schools in Tucson, one charter school in Phoenix, and is planning a second charter 
school in Phoenix. 

Ms. Evans stated that with the passing of the resolution, the Florence IDA will receive a 
$3,000 application fee and a yearly administration fee of seven basis points of the 
outstanding balance of the issue for the life of the bonds. 

On motion of Councilmember Guilin, seconded by Councilmember Woolridge, and 
carried to adopt Resolution No. 1516-15. 
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 employee benefit 
program renewal with Blue Cross/Blue Shield of Arizona for medical; Teladoc for 
24/7 physician access benefits; Principal Financial Group for dental and life 
insurance; Vision Service Plan for vision insurance; EAP Preferred for Employee 
Assistance Program, AFLAC for supplemental insurance products, and 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
May 4, 2015 
Page 8 of 11 

Infinisource to administer our Section 125 flexible benefit account plan; and 
authorization for the Town Manager to negotiate and enter into all agreements. 

Mr. Scott Barber, Human Resources Director, stated that the staff is recommending 
approval of the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Employee Benefit Program renewal with Blue 
Cross/Blue Shield of Arizona.  He stated that the employee insurance benefit package 
renews on July 1, 2015.  Garry L. Johnson & Associates, the Town’s employee benefit 
plan consultant, solicited and received renewal quotes from all providers and reported 
that all providers are offering renewals with a zero premium increase. 

Mr. Barber stated that the Town’s estimated portion of the annual maximum cost for the 
Employee Benefit Package for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 is included in the various 
departmental proposed budgets.  If voters do not approve the proposed budget ballot 
measure on May 19, 2015, staff will be evaluating the benefit package and the cost-
sharing arrangement with employees. 

On motion of Councilmember Anderson, seconded by Vice-Mayor Walter, and carried to 
approve the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Employee Benefit Program renewal with Blue 
Cross/Blue Shield of Arizona for medical; Teladoc for 24/7 physician access benefits; 
Principal Financial Group for dental and life insurance; Vision Service Plan for vision 
insurance; EAP Preferred for Employee Assistance Program, AFLAC for supplemental 
insurance products, and Infinisource to administer our Section 125 flexible benefit 
account plan; and authorization for the Town Manager to negotiate and enter into all 
agreements. 

Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of awarding a contract to Kimbrell Electric for 
installation of a traffic signal at Fire Station No. 2, in an amount not to exceed 
$199,081.62. 

Ms. Garcia stated that this project will not be completed within this fiscal year and will 
carry over into the 2015-2016 Fiscal Year. 

Mr. John Mitchell, Utilities Director, stated that the project was identified during the 
construction of the Fire Station No. 2, located at 2035 N. Hunt Highway, which will allow 
for ingress and egress of emergency equipment from the station.  He stated that six 
companies bid the project with prices ranging from a low of $199,081.62 to a high of 
$252,610.00.  The lowest bidder, Kimbrell Electric, has been determined to be the 
lowest responsive and responsible bidder. 

Councilmember Hawkins inquired as to what portion of the project will be carried over 
into the next fiscal year. 

Ms. Garcia stated that due to the plan-out time of the project, an estimated $30,000 will 
be expensed this year for the light poles with the remainder of the project is being 
expensed out next fiscal year. 

Mr. Michael Farina, Finance Director, stated that whatever portion of the project is not 
expensed during this fiscal year will be carried over into next year.  He stated that the 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
May 4, 2015 
Page 9 of 11 

State Constitution does permit for the carryover of revenues which would include this 
type of project. 

On motion of Vice-Mayor Walter, seconded by Councilmember Anderson, and carried to 
award a contract to Kimbrell Electric, for installation of a traffic signal at Fire Station No. 
2, in an amount not to exceed $199,081.62. 

Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of accepting Councilmember Montaño’s 
resignation from the Town Council. 

Mayor Rankin stated that Councilmember Montaño submitted his resignation due to 
new employment.  He acknowledged Councilmember Montaño's work and dedication, 
and thanked him on behalf of the Council and its residents.   

On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Guilin, to accept 
the resignation of Councilmember Montaño from the Town Council. 

Roll Call: 

Councilmember Anderson:  Yes 
Councilmember Guilin:  Yes 
Councilmember Hawkins:  Yes 
Councilmember Woolridge:  Yes 
Vice-Mayor Walter:  Yes 
Mayor Rankin:  Yes 
 
Motion Passed: Yes: 6; No: 0 
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of establishing criteria and setting a timeline 
for filling the vacant Council seat. 

Councilmember Woolridge stated that she would like anyone interested in filling the 
vacant Council seat to submit their resume to be considered by Council for 
appointment. 

Councilmember Hawkins stated that he agreed with Councilmember Woolridge. 

Vice-Mayor Walter stated that she would like Council to look at those who are serving 
on a board and commission and those who are active in the Town. 

Mayor Rankin stated that he would like to proceed with the application process,  
conduct interviews, and appoint at an open session of Council.  He stated that 
applicants should submit their resume and cover letter to the Clerk’s Office, including 
those who have already submitted resumes, so they can be properly tracked and dated.  
He inquired if Council wanted to conduct interviews and the appointment at the same 
evening or have a special meeting. 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
May 4, 2015 
Page 10 of 11 

Vice-Mayor Walter stated that she would like to conduct the interviews and the 
appointment on the same evening. 

Mayor Rankin stated that he would like to conduct the interviews on May 18, 2015, and 
then make the appointment on June 1, 2015.   

It was the consensus of the Council to conduct interviews on May 18, 2015, and make 
the appointment on June 1, 2015. 

On motion to Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Woolridge, and 
carried to accept letters of interest and resumes for the vacant Council seat beginning 
May 5, 2015 until the close of business on May 14, 2015. 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

Manager’s Report 
Department Reports 

Community Development 
Courts 
Finance 
Library 
Parks and Recreation 
Police 
Public Works 
Utilities 
 

The department reports were received and filed. 
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
Mr. Bruce Fenstermaker, Florence resident, stated that he has been working on a 
project for the past six months and provided Council with statistical information that 
could help in expanding the transit service. 
 
Mr. Fred Redmond, Oasis of Magic Ranch resident, stated that when the annexation 
goes through, there are many members in the Magic Ranch community that would 
benefit from a transit system and be able to access the benefits of being a part of the 
Town of Florence.  
 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL 
 
Councilmember Guilin stated that she appreciated Mr. Montaño’ s participation on the 
Town Council as he was very mindful of the decisions he made and will be missed. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins and Councilmember Woolridge agreed with Councilmember 
Guilin’s statements. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
May 4, 2015 
Page 11 of 11 

Councilmember Anderson stated that Mr. Montaño was an ideal councilmember with his 
experience in education and law enforcement, and as a native of Florence, he brought 
to Council a great deal of knowledge and understanding of the needs of Florence.  He 
stated that when he visits the Senior Center he is often asked when a grocery store will 
come to town.  He stated a strong inter-town transit system would provide service up to 
Safeway, which is in the Town, and fulfill the need to access a grocery store. 
 
Vice-Mayor Walter stated that she agreed that a strong inter-town transit system would 
not only provide the requested service but keep the tax-base locally if they shop more in 
the Town.  She stated that she has had the privilege to work with Mr. Montaño as a 
Councilmember and with the school district and he will be missed. 
 
Mayor Rankin thanked Vice-Mayor Walter for attending the Arbor Day event on his 
behalf.  He stated there was a Proclamation on the Consent Agenda declaring the 
month of May as Foster Care Month.  He stated that the foster care system is in need of 
good foster homes and encouraged those who can, to open their homes and give a 
child in foster care a chance. 
 
Council may go into Executive Session at any time during the meeting for the 
purpose of obtaining legal advice from the Town’s Attorney(s) on any of the 
agenda items pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3). 
 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Vice-Mayor Walter, and carried to 
adjourn the meeting at 7:31 pm.  
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town 
Council meeting held on May 4, 2015, and that the meeting was duly called to order and 
that a quorum was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 



MINUTES OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, 
MAY 18, 2015, AT 6:00 PM, IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, LOCATED AT 
775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Rankin called the meeting to order at 6:04 pm. 

 
ROLL CALL 
 
Present:  Rankin, Walter, Woolridge, Hawkins, Guilin, Anderson 
 
MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 
Mayor Rankin called for a moment of silence. 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
May 18, 2015 
Page 1 of 11 
 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Rankin led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the 
Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual 
Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask 
staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  
However, members of the Council shall not discuss or take action on any matter 
during an open call to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for 
discussion and legal action. 
 
Ms. Ruth Harrison, Florence resident, read portions of the Arbor Day Proclamation that 
was read at the Arbor Day event.  

 
PRESENTATIONS 
 
Presentation by the Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce recognizing Hospice 
of the Valley as the Business of the Month. 
 
Mr. Jim Gilloon, Office Manager, Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce, recognized 
Hospice of the Valley as the Business of the Month.  He stated that the Hospice of the 
Valley is one of the topnotch, non-profit, organizations serving Maricopa and northern 
Pinal Counties.  He stated that Hospice of the Valley supports the needs of veterans 
and offers services to the Hispanic community with over 20 grief support groups valley 
wide.  He stated that the mission statement for Hospice of the Valley is comfort and 
dignity as life nears its end. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
May 18, 2015 
Page 2 of 11 
 

Ms. Carolyn Richel, Representative with Hospice of the Valley, accepted the award on 
behalf of its members and patients. 

 
Presentation of the 2015 Arizona Governor’s Heritage Preservation Honor Award, 
on behalf of the State Historic Preservation Office, to the Mayor and Council of 
the Town of Florence, on behalf of the Florence Historic District residents and 
Home Tour volunteers.  
 
Ms. Bonnie Bariola, Florence Preservation Foundation, stated that 475 attendees 
participated in the 2015 Arizona Heritage Preservation Conference held in Flagstaff, 
Arizona.  She stated that the Town of Florence and one other municipality set up tables 
at the event.  The Town’s table included pictures of the various historical buildings 
throughout Town along with brochures promoting the Town. 
 
Ms. Bariola stated that the Arizona preservation Foundation and the Arizona State 
Historic Preservation Office partner each year to present the Governor’s Heritage 
Preservation Honor Awards recognizing people, organization and projects that 
represent outstanding achievements in preserving Arizona’s prehistoric and historic 
resources. 
 
Ms. Barriola stated that the 2015 Home Tour marked the 30th annual celebration and 
was the first of its kind to be submitted for an award.  The submittal application 
explained that the annual tour opens homes and businesses to the public which would 
normally not be available.  The tour operates with the assistance of 150 residential 
volunteers who assist to promote historic preservation in the Town of Florence. 
 
Ms. Bariola presented the award to the Town Council and Mayor Rankin accepted on 
behalf of the Town. 

 
CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as 
part of the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public 
objects at the time the agenda item is called.  

 
a. Approval of Change Order No. 3 with Apache Underground and Excavation, 

for the Bailey Street waterline, for $37,376, with a total project cost not to 
exceed $648,691.20. 
 

b. Approval of Change Order No. 1 with Coolidge Engine & Pump, LLC, for 
emergency repair of Well #1, for $8,118.14, with a total project cost not to 
exceed $62,618.73. 
 

c. Approval of Change Order No. 1 with Ripple Industries, for additional 
troubleshooting and start-up services with regards to installation of the 
supervisory control of Town wells and reservoir sites for $10,375, with a 
total project cost not to exceed $80,375. 

 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
May 18, 2015 
Page 3 of 11 
 

d. Approval of the resignation of Chairman Tom Celaya from the Arts and 
Culture Commission. 
 

e. Adoption of Resolution No. 1520–15:   
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, read Resolution No. 1520-15 by 
title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
AUTHORIZING THE TOWN TO ENTER INTO A GRANT AGREEMENT WITH THE 
ARIZONA CRIMINAL JUSTICE COMMISSION NATIONAL CRIMINAL HISTORY 
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM. 

 
f. Approval of the April 6, and April 20, 2015 Town Council minutes. 

 
g. Receive and file the following board and commission minutes: 

 
i. April 1, 2015 Arts and Culture Commission minutes. 

ii. September 18, 2014, October 16, 2014, and April 2, 2015 Planning and 
Zoning Commission minutes.  

 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Walter, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and carried to 
approve the Consent Agenda, as written, with the exception of item 7f and 7g.  
 

g. Approval of the April 6, and April 20, 2015 Town Council minutes. 
 

h. Receive and file the following board and commission minutes: 
 
i. April 1, 2015 Arts and Culture Commission minutes. 

ii. September 18, 2014, October 16, 2014, and April 2, 2015 Planning and 
Zoning Commission minutes.  

 
Councilmember Anderson stated that there was an error in the year noted in the footer 
of the April 6, 2015 minutes.  He stated that he also believes Ms. Adams’ name is Cathy 
not Tracy. 
 
Councilmember Anderson stated that he is concerned that the minutes are late in being 
submitted to Council and would like to see the minutes prior to making decisions on 
their behalf.  He stated that he was also concerned with the parking space count that 
was approved for the Mosaic Church as it seems to be too low for the volume of usage 
of the facility. 
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, stated that the Clerk’s office will 
contact all department heads and assist with any board and commission minutes that 
may be behind and ensure minutes are brought to Council in a timely fashion.  She 
stated that the Clerk’s office would need to seek legal counsel regarding a previously 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
May 18, 2015 
Page 4 of 11 
 

approved item by the Planning and Zoning Commission and what the correct protocol 
would be if a member of Council has a concern with the decision. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Anderson, seconded by Vice-Mayor Walter, and carried to 
approve items 7f. and 7g. with corrections made to the April 6, 2015 meeting minutes 
footer and Ms. Adams’ name.  
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk read Ordinance No. 629-15 by title 
only. 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING A ZONE CHANGE ON .55 ACRES, FROM NEIGHBORHOOD MULTI-
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICT TO HIGHWAY BUSINESS 
COMMERCIAL ZONING DISTRICT (APN 200-47-0250). (First reading May 4, 2015) 
 
Mr. Mark Eckhoff, Community Development Director, stated one letter was added to this 
submittal which was received regarding the home that previously housed the Happy 
Adobe.  He stated that the property owner does not want to preserve the home nor have 
it added to the historical registry.  The home in question is not actually on the lot that the 
requested zone change is for. He stated there is no mechanism in place that would 
change the desires of the lot which previously housed the Happy Adobe. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Vice-Mayor Walter, and carried to 
adopt Ordinance No. 629-15.  

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Interviews for vacant Council Seat: Interviews are being conducted in the order of 
applicant submittal.  Candidates will be asked to wait in the lobby until they are 
called to interview. Once their interview is complete, applicants may remain in the 
Council Chambers for the remainder of the meeting.  
 
Mayor Rankin read a statement for the candidates regarding conflict of interest and how 
to obtain legal counsel, if appointed.  He explained that the candidates would be asked 
six questions.   After answering the questions, members of Council may additionally ask 
questions of each candidate. 
 
Mayor Rankin introduced Mr. Jeffrey D. Wooley. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired what Mr. Wooley’s motivation and reasons were for seeking the 
appointment. 
 
Mr. Wooley stated that he recently completed 14 years of participation on the Planning 
and Zoning Commission.  He stated that he left the Commission in preparation of 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
May 18, 2015 
Page 5 of 11 
 

moving on to the Town Council.  He stated that he has lived in the Town for 17 years 
and has a great passion for the Town and its heritage. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired as to what Mr. Wooley would bring to Council, if appointed, to 
better the Council during his tenure. 
 
Mr. Wooley stated that he has 14 plus years of experience as a volunteer on the 
Planning and Zoning Committee and is a 2013 graduate of Project Central, which is a 
rural area leadership academy.  
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if there were one or two things Mr. Wooley thought the Florence 
government was doing well. 
 
Mr. Wooley stated that he believes the Town is heading in the right direction and that 
Council and staff work together to make the correct decisions for the Town. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if there was one specific thing Mr. Wooley would hope to 
accomplish, if he were appointed. 
 
Mr. Wooley stated that he hopes that Florence would keep moving forward, 
remembering that the Town is small and not to lose sight of its history. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if Mr. Wooley would seek election to Council, if appointed, to fill 
this vacancy. 
 
Mr. Wooley stated that he would be running for election once the appointment was 
complete. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired what Mr. Wooley thought were the three greatest challenges 
facing the community today and if he had any suggestion to resolve those challenges. 
 
Mr. Wooley stated that the first challenge is Home Rule and though staff has done 
everything they can to educate member of Town, continued education on this topic 
needs to occur to continue the educational process well after the special election. 
 
Councilmember Woolridge inquired if Mr. Wooley would be running for Council if not 
appointed. 
 
Mr. Wooley stated that he does plan to run for Council if not appointed at the next 
Council election. 
 
Mayor Rankin introduced Mr. Tom Smith. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired what Mr. Smith’s motivation and reasons were for seeking this 
appointment. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
May 18, 2015 
Page 6 of 11 
 

Mr. Smith stated that he has been on Council for 12 ½ years and knows the issues that 
Council is dealing with and can step in and support the Council. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired as to what Mr. Smith would bring to Council, if appointed, to 
better the Council during his tenure. 
 
Mr. Smith stated it is his love for the Town of Florence and wants to see it move forward 
and cared for. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired what Mr. Smith thought were the three greatest challenges 
facing our Community today and if he had any suggestion to resolve those challenges. 
 
Mr. Smith stated that Town has fiscal challenges coming up and needs to be attentive 
and responsible to the financial dealing of the Town.  He stated water preservation 
needs to be done now, continuing the work that has been done already.  He stated that 
he would like the library project completed and see the members of Florence enjoy the 
facility.  The Parks and Recreation Department is and has done a great job with the new 
facility construction project.  The Community Development Department has done a 
great job keeping up with the growth of the Town and the increase in business for their 
department.  He stated these are the main items he looks at along with working the 
Council and Town staff to ensure the Town’s business is completed. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if there were one or two things Mr. Smith thought the Florence 
government was doing well. 
 
Mr. Smith stated that he believes Council is taking care of the Town well, listening to 
anyone that comes to them and tries to resolve their needs.  He stated that Council 
works well with staff ensuring all questions are answered and all items are completed in 
a timely manner. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if there was one specific thing Mr. Smith would hope to 
accomplish if he was appointed. 
 
Mr. Smith stated he would like to be a help to Council and staff. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if Mr. Smith would seek election to Council, if appointed, to fill 
the vacancy. 
 
Mr. Smith stated that he would most likely not be running for election after completing 
the 18 month appointment. 
 
Mayor Rankin introduced Ms. Karen J. Wall. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired what Ms. Walls’ motivation and reasons were for seeking this 
appointment. 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
May 18, 2015 
Page 7 of 11 
 

Ms. Wall stated that she likes Florence and would like to become involved in many 
activities and concerns of the Town.  She finds herself obligated to keep supporting the 
Town and the General Plan that has been in place. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired as to what Ms. Wall would bring to Council, if appointed, to 
better the Council during her tenure. 
 
Ms. Wall stated that she is very detail-oriented, preparing for all items she is involved in.  
She is a strong communicator and provides information to those around her on topics 
she is involved in.  She stated that she would like to continue her work with the Town 
and if there is a conflict of interest, she has a plan to resolve it. She stated that she is a 
customer service oriented person and sees being a part of Council as an opportunity to 
serve the citizens of Florence.  She has worked within a school system, owned her own 
business and negotiated large contracts that have provided her a skill set that will 
benefit the business of the Town and Town Council. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired what Ms. Wall thought were the three greatest challenges facing 
our community today and if she had any suggestion to resolve those challenges. 
 
Ms. Wall stated that Proposition 407 is the most urgent issue in front of Council and 
staff and whichever way the vote goes; Council and staff will make the budget work and 
hopes she can be a part of the least painful way to ensure a successful fiscal year.  She 
stated the Library/Aquatic Center opening that is currently under construction needs to 
be completed and then believes the Town needs to resolve the issue with the Florence 
Copper project. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if there were one or two things Ms. Wall thought the Florence 
government was doing well. 
 
Ms. Wall stated that she supports the Council and believes Council has a lot of respect 
in the community and is doing what is best for the Town. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if there was one specific thing Ms. Wall would hope to 
accomplish if she was appointed. 
 
Ms. Smith stated she would like to increase communication thought the communities in 
Town using social media and print. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if Ms. Smith would seek election to Council, if appointed, to fill 
this vacancy. 
 
Ms. Smith stated at this time she was not sure if she would be running for election upon 
completion of the appointed term.  
 
Mayor Rankin introduced Mr. Art Buckley. 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
May 18, 2015 
Page 8 of 11 
 

Mayor Rankin inquired what Mr. Buckley’s motivation and reasons were for seeking this 
appointment. 
 
Mr. Buckley stated that he has two major concerns; one being the downtown areas and 
the second being the impact fees being assessed to the Florence Garden area and 
downtown. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired as to what Mr. Buckley would bring to Council, if appointed, to 
better the Council during his tenure. 
 
Mr. Buckley stated that he has development experience which a majority of the Council 
does not.  He stated that he would be inquisitive regarding statements made by staff 
and others to ensure information is accurate. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired what Mr. Buckley thought were the three greatest challenges 
facing our community today and if he had any suggestion to resolve those challenges. 
 
Mr. Buckley stated that one major challenge that Council has consistently addressed is 
the Copper Mine project and encouraged the Council stay firm in their efforts to protect 
the Town’s water. He stated other issues are confidence in money management, 
improving the citizens of Florence confidence in the Council and how money is being 
spent and lastly, there are things that can be done to encourage growth in the 
downtown area.  
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if there were one or two things Mr. Buckley thought the Florence 
government was doing well. 
 
Mr. Buckley stated that the Town is doing many things well; one is being frugal and 
saving funds, and secondly, being consistent in the actions opposing the Copper Mine.  
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if there was one specific thing Mr. Buckley would hope to 
accomplish if he was appointed. 
 
Mr. Buckley stated that he would like to be a part of the process to restore the 
confidence regarding Home Rule and the spending decision of the Town. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if Mr. Buckley would seek election to Council if appointed to fill 
this vacancy. 
 
Mr. Buckley stated that he would not be running for election. 
 
Mayor Rankin introduced Ms. S. Dulaine Coleman. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired what Ms. Coleman’s motivation and reasons were for seeking 
this appointment. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
May 18, 2015 
Page 9 of 11 
 

Ms. Coleman stated that she has training in political science and has a great interest in 
politics.  She stated that she has concerns regarding different activities in the 
community. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired as to what Ms. Coleman would bring to Council, if appointed, to 
better the Council during her tenure. 
 
Ms. Coleman stated that her experience in public policy, she has many ideas that would 
be useful and she has the time to dedicate to the Town. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired what Ms. Coleman thought were the three greatest challenges 
facing our community today and if she had any suggestion to resolve those challenges. 
 
Ms. Coleman stated that she feels transportation, infrastructure and business are the 
challenges facing the community. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if there were one or two things Ms. Coleman thought the 
Florence government was doing well. 
 
Ms. Coleman stated that she believes Council is trying to address the concern to 
preserve the Town’s history and historical buildings along with moving the Town 
forward. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if there was one specific thing Ms. Coleman would hope to 
accomplish if she was appointed. 
 
Ms. Coleman stated that she would hope to have public utilities be public. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if Ms. Coleman would seek election to Council if appointed to fill 
this vacancy. 
 
Ms. Coleman stated that at this time, it would be premature for her to say. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired what Mr. Coleman meant regarding public utilities being public. 
 
Ms. Coleman stated that the water department is owned by a single person and as 
such, the users have no say regarding rate increases or what happens with the water. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that Council will make the appointment at the June 1, 2015 
Council meeting. 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT 

CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
Mayor Rankin opened the call to the public. There were no comments; Mayor Rankin 
closed the call to the public. 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
May 18, 2015 
Page 10 of 11 
 

 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL 
 
Councilmember Anderson stated that he was appreciative of the work that has been 
done at the intersection of Attaway and Hunt Highway by the Public Works Department. 
 
Councilmember Guilin stated that she had the opportunity to visit the Mary C. Obrien 
School and participate in an exercise with the 4th graders.  She stated that Ms. Garcia 
had been working with the children on their presentation skills and was amazed of the 
work that has been done with those children by Ms. Garcia. 
 
Councilmember Woolridge stated that she had an opportunity to attend one of Ms. 
Garcia’s sessions with the kids at Mary C. Obrien School and it was a pleasure 
watching Ms. Garcia work with the kids.  She stated that Ms. Garcia represents the 
Town of Florence very well and makes us all proud. 
 
Vice-Mayor Walter stated that she would like to remind everyone that if they have not 
mailed their ballot, that they need to hand deliver it to the Pinal County office on 
Florence Avenue until 7:00 pm on May 19, 2015.  She thanked the Council applicants 
for applying. 
 
Councilmember Anderson inquired when election results will be available. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that the election results will be available between 8:05 pm and 8:15 
pm, on the Town’s website. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that the program at the Mary C. O’Brien School was very well 
done and the plans that the kids developed for the library were well thought out.  He 
encouraged everyone to vote.  He stated that if they have not mailed in their ballot, they 
will need to deliver it to the Pinal County office.  He thanked the candidates for applying 
and interviewing for the vacant Council seat and that the decision will be made at the 
June 1, 2015 Council meeting.  
 
Council may go into Executive Session at any time during the meeting for the 
purpose of obtaining legal advice from the Town’s Attorney(s) on any of the 
agenda items pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3). 
 
On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Anderson, and 
carried to adjourn the meeting at 7:12 pm.  
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
May 18, 2015 
Page 11 of 11 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town 
Council meeting held on May 18, 2015, and that the meeting was duly called to order 
and that a quorum was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 





























 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
8a. 

MEETING DATE: June 15, 2015  
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Jennifer Evans 
                                      Management Analyst 
 
SUBJECT:    Consideration and adoption of Resolution No. 

1522-15: Approving the Issuance by the 
Industrial Development Authority of the Town of 
Florence, Inc. Not to Exceed $1,650,000 of 
Education Revenue Bonds (Mohave Accelerated 
Learning Center Schools), Series 2015, for the 
benefit of Mohave Accelerated Learning Center 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject: Resolution No. 1522-15 to Approve the IDA Revenue Bond                      Meeting Date: June 15, 2015 
Page 1 of 2 

and Mohave Accelerated Elementary School, 
Inc. 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1522-15: A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, GRANTING APPROVAL TO THE 
ISSUANCE OF ONE OR MORE SERIES OF THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, INC. TAX-EXEMPT AND/OR TAXABLE 
EDUCATION REVENUE BONDS (MOHAVE ACCELERATED LEARNING CENTER 
SCHOOLS), SERIES 2015, IN AN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO 
EXCEED $1,650,000 TO FINANCE THE ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION, 
RENOVATION, IMPROVEMENT AND EQUIPPING OF EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES 
FOR MOHAVE ACCELERATED LEARNING CENTER AND MOHAVE ACCELERATED 
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL, INC. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Adoption of Resolution No. 1522-15 will allow Mohave Learning Center Schools to 
issue, through the Florence Industrial Development Authority (Authority), up to 
$1,650,000 of bonds for the acquisition, construction, renovation, improvement and 
equipment of the land and buildings at 625 Marina Boulevard, Bullhead City, Arizona, 
for use as a charter school.  
 
Mohave Accelerated Learning Center owns and operates a charter school serving 
approximately 400 students in grades 6th through 12th on what is referred to as the 
“Main Campus”.  Mohave Accelerated Elementary School, Inc. operates a charter 



Subject: Resolution No. 1522-15 to Approve the IDA Revenue Bond                      Meeting Date: June 15, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 

school serving approximately 180 students in grades K through 5th on the Main Campus 
and on their East Campus. 
 
There is no liability incurred by the Town of Florence in granting its approval for the 
issuance of the bonds.  By issuing the bonds, the Town or the Authority is not precluded 
from making other issues now or in the future.  The issuance of IDA bonds is contingent 
upon the borrower’s strength and the comfort that the underwriter has with the 
applicant.  
 
By adopting this resolution, the Authority will receive a $3,000 application fee and a 
yearly administrative fee of 7 basis points of the outstanding balance of the issue for the 
life of the bonds.  If $1.65 million in bonds are issued, the Authority will receive 
approximately $1,155.00 at closing.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Under the provisions of Arizona Revised Statutes, Section 35-742, the Town of 
Florence shall not in any event be liable for the payment of the principal or interest of 
the bonds of the Authority or for the performance by the Authority of any of its 
obligations with respect to its bonds nor shall any agreements or obligations of the 
Authority constitute an indebtedness of the Town of Florence within the meaning of any 
constitutional or statutory provisions whatsoever.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends adoption of Resolution No. 1522-15 for approval of the Industrial 
Development Authority of the Town of Florence, Inc. bonds for Mohave Accelerated 
Learning Center and Mohave Accelerated Elementary School, Inc. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1522-15 
Ryley, Carlock, & Applewhite letter dated June 1, 2015 
 



 

 
3823230.1 
06/02/15 

RESOLUTION NO. 1522-15 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, GRANTING APPROVAL TO THE ISSUANCE OF ONE OR 
MORE SERIES OF THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF 
THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, INC. TAX-EXEMPT AND/OR TAXABLE 
EDUCATION REVENUE BONDS (MOHAVE ACCELERATED 
LEARNING CENTER SCHOOLS), SERIES 2015, IN AN AGGREGATE 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED $1,650,000 TO FINANCE 
THE ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION, IMPROVEMENT AND 
EQUIPPING OF EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES FOR MOHAVE 
ACCELERATED LEARNING CENTER AND MOHAVE ACCELERATED 
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL, INC. 

 

WHEREAS, The Industrial Development Authority of the Town of Florence, Inc. 

(the “Authority”), is an Arizona nonprofit corporation designated as a political 

subdivision of the State of Arizona empowered under the Industrial Development 

Financing Act, A.R.S. §§ 35-701 through 761 inclusive (the “Act”), to issue revenue 

bonds for the purposes set forth in the Act, including the making of secured and 

unsecured loans for the purpose of financing and refinancing the acquisition, 

construction, improvement or equipping of a “project” (as defined in the Act) whenever 

the Board of Directors of the Authority finds such loans to be in the public interest; and 

WHEREAS, the term “project” includes within its meaning any land, any building 

or other improvements, and all real and personal properties which are suitable for an 

educational institution or organization established under the provisions of Title 15, 

Chapter 1, Article 8, Arizona Revised Statutes and owned by a nonprofit organization; 

and 

WHEREAS, Mohave Accelerated Learning Center and Mohave Accelerated 

Elementary School, Inc. (together, the “Borrower”), each of which are Arizona nonprofit 



 

2 
1250658.v1 

corporations designated as organizations described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal 

Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), have requested the Authority to 

issue its revenue bonds for the purpose of assisting the Borrower in financing the costs 

of acquiring, constructing, improving and equipping buildings to be used as charter 

school facilities located in Bullhead City, Arizona (the “School”); and 

WHEREAS, in furtherance of the purposes of the Act, the Authority proposes to 

issue one or more series of its tax-exempt and/or taxable Education Revenue Bonds 

(Mohave Accelerated Learning Center Schools), Series 2015 (the “Bonds”), in an 

aggregate principal amount of not to exceed $1,650,000, pursuant to an Amended and 

Restated Financing Agreement and a First Supplemental Financing Agreement, to be 

dated as of June 1, 2015 (together, the “Financing Agreement”), among the Authority, 

the Borrower and Compass Mortgage Corporation, as Bond purchaser; 

WHEREAS, the proceeds of the Bonds will be loaned to the Borrower to (i) 

acquire, construct, improve and equip an approximately 13,900 square foot multi-

purpose facility and ten classrooms at the School, and (ii) paying certain costs relating 

to issuance of the Bonds (collectively, the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the Authority, by a resolution duly adopted by the Board of Directors 

of the Authority at a lawful meeting called and held on June 15, 2015 (the “Authority 

Resolution”), granted final approval to the issuance and sale of the Bonds in aggregate 

principal amount not to exceed $1,650,000; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 35-721.B of the Act, the proceedings of the 

Authority under which the Bonds are to be issued require the approval of this Council; 

and 



 

3 
1250658.v1 

WHEREAS, this Council has had presented to it information regarding the 

Project and the Bonds and is informed and advised regarding the Project and the 

Bonds. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN OF FLORENCE 

as follows: 

SECTION I. APPROVAL OF PROCEEDINGS.  The proceedings of the 

Authority under which the Bonds are to be issued in aggregate principal amount not to 

exceed $1,650,000 are hereby approved, subject, however, to all the terms and 

conditions contained in the Authority Resolution. 

SECTION II. CERTIFICATION.  It is hereby CERTIFIED under penalty of perjury 

that the approval of the proceedings and the issuance of the Bonds is not made in 

consideration of any bribe, gift, gratuity, or direct or indirect contribution to any political 

campaign. 

PASSED by the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of Florence, Pinal County, 

Arizona, this 15th day of June, 2015. 

 

 ________________________________ 
 Tom Rankin - Mayor 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM 

 

_______________________________  ________________________________  
Lisa Garcia - Town Clerk  Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney 

 



RYLEYCNNIOCK A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION
One North Central Avenue, Suite f200

Phoenix, Arizona 85004-4417
p 602.440.4800 F 602.2s7.9582

Offices in Arizona & Colorado
www,rcalaw.com

6{-A P P L E W H I T E

AttorneJts

William F, Wilder
Direct Line: 602-440-4802
Direct Fax: 602-257 -6902
E-mail: wwilder@rcalaw.com

June 1,2015

To Mayor and Town Council
Town of Florence, Anzona

Board of Directors
of The Industrial Development Authority
of the Town of Florence, Inc.

Not to Exceed $ 1,650,000 The Industrial Development Authority of
the Town of Florence, Inc. Education Revenue Bonds
(Mohave Accelerated Learning Center Schools), Series 2015

Ladies and Gentlemen:

At a meeting of the Board of Directors of The Industrial Development
Authority of the Town of Florence, Inc,, (the "Authority") to be held on June 15,2075, the
Authority will be asked to adopt a resolution authorizing the issuance and sale of the bonds
as described above (the "Bonds"),

Thereafter, at a meeting of the Florence Town Council to be held on June 15,
2075, the Town Council will be asked to approve the proceedings of the Authority, as
prescribed by A.R.S. $35-821,8, for the issuance of the Bonds,

The purpose of this letter is to provide a summary review of the planned
f,rnancing.

THE AUTHORITY AND ITS POWERS

The Authority is an Arizona nonprofit corporation incorporated under the
provisions of the Industrial Development Financing Act, Title 35, Chapter 5, and Title 10,
Arizona Nonprof,rt Corporation Act, Arizona Revised Statutes, as amended (the "Act"). The
Authority is designated by law as a political subdivision of the State of Anzona. Under the
provisions of the Act, the Town Council of the Town of Florence is the goveming body of
the Authority, is responsible for electing the Directors of the Authority, and must approve the
proceedings of the Authority for the issuance of the Bonds.

3811292.1
05t29/t5

Re



Mayor and Town Council
Board of Directors
of The Industrial Development Authority
of the Town of Florence, Inc.

June 1,2075
Page2

RYTEYCARTOCK
ôLA P P L E W H I T E

AttorneJS

The Authority is empowered to issue the Bonds and loan the proceeds from
the sale of the Bonds to finance "projects" as such term is defined in A,R.S. $ 35-701,
Facilities for a nonprofit 501(c)(3) charter school organization formed under the provisions
of Title 15, Article 1, Chapter 8, Arizona Revised Statutes, as amended, constitute a "project"
within the meaning of the Act,

Under the provisions of the Act, the Authority is empowered to issue its bonds
to finance a "project" located anywhere in Arizona (except when the "project" is housing, in
which case the "project" must be located in the Town of Florence), Also, under the
provisions of the Act the Authority is empowered to issue its bonds to finance a project
outside of Arizona if certain criteria set forth in the Act are met,

THE APPLICANTS/BORROWERS

The Applicants/Borrowers for financing are Mohave Accelerated Learning
Center and Mohave Accelerated Elementary School, Inc. (collectively "Mohave
Accelerated"), which are affiliates of each other and are governed by the same Board of
Directors and have the same executive officers. Each is a an Anzona nonprofit corporation
designated under the Intemal Revenue Code as a 501(cX3) organization and formed and
operated exclusively for charitable and educational purposes as a charter school under the
provisions of Title 15, Article 1, Chapter 8, Arizona Revised Statutes, as amended.

Mohave Accelerated Learning Center owns and operates a charter school
serving approximately 400 students in grades 6th to l2th on what is referred to as the "Main
Campus" at 625 Marina Boulevard, Bullhead City, Arizona. Mohave Accelerated
Elementary.School, Inc, operates a charter school serving approximately 180 students in
grades K-5th on the Main Campus and on what is referred to as the "Easi Campus" at 945
Thumb Butte Road, Bullhead City, Arizona.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

In August,2013, the Authority, with the approval of the Florence Town
Council, issued $5,284,000 of Education Revenue and Refunding Bonds (Mohave
Accelerated Learning Centers Schools), Series 2013 (the u2073 Bonds"), for the benefit of
Mohave Accelerated Learning Center and Mohave Accelerated Elementary School, Inc., the
same entities which are the Applicants/Borrowers at this time.

The proceeds of the 2013 Bonds were used to refinance existing loans and to
provide funds to acquire, construct, improve and equip facilities at the two Campus' of
Mohave Accelerated Elementary School located in Bullhead City, Anzona,



RYTEYCARTOCK
Mayor and Town Council
Board of Directors
of The Industrial Development Authority
of the Town of Florence, Inc.

June I ,2015
Page 3

&A P P L E W H I T E
AttorneJls

The 2013 Bonds were purchased and are held by BBVA Compass Bank, the
entity that will be the purchaser of the Bonds now proposed to be issued.

THE PROJECT

The Project to be financed with the proceeds of the Bonds will include
(i) acquiring, constructing, improving and equipping of an approximately 13,900 square foot
multi-purpose facility, and ten classrooms consisting of approximately 9,400 square feet to
be located at the Main Campus mentioned above, and (ii) paying certain costs of issuance of
the Bonds. The Bonds to be issued will be purchased and held by BBVA Compass Bank,
which holds the2013 Bonds.

APPROVAL BY AUTHORITY

At the Authority Board meeting on June 15, 2015, it is anticipated the
Authority Board will grant approval to the application for financing submitted by Mohave
Accelerated and will adopt a resolution authorizing the issuance and sale of the Bonds,

NOTIFICATION TO ARIZONA ATTORNEY GENERAL

As required by the provisions of Arizona Revised Statutes, Section 35-721.F,
the Authority will notify the Arizona Attomey General of the Authority's intention to issue
the Bonds.

PUBLIC HEARING

No public hearing pursuant to the provisions of Section 147(Ð of the Intemal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, is required for the proposed financing,

ALLOCATION FOR TAX EXEMPT FINANCING

Since the Applicants are nonprofit 501(cX3) organizations, it is not necessary
for the Applicant to obtain an allocation of the State of Anzona 2015 volume cap or "state
ceiling" for the proposed financing and the Bonds to be issued.



RYTEYCARLOCK

FINANCING PARTICIPANTS

The major participants in the financing are as follows:

Issuer: The Industrial Development Authority of the Town of
Florence, Inc.

Issuer Counsel: Ryley, Carlock & Applewhite

Applicants/Borrowers: Mohave Accelerated Learning Center and Mohave
Accelerated Elementary School, Inc,

Applicants/BorrowersCounsel SaoksTiemeyP.A.

Bond Counsel: Sacks TiemeY P.A.

Bond Purchaser BBVA Compass Bank or an affiliate

PRINCIPAL FINANCING DOCUMENTS

Mayor and Town Council
Board of Directors
of The Industrial Development Authority
of the Town of Florence, Inc,

June 1 ,2075
Page 4

Document

Amended and Restated Financing
Agreement

First Supplemental Financing
Agteement

Tax Certificate and Agteement

Investor Letter

&A P P L E W H IT E
AttorneJls

Parties

Issuer, Borrowers and Bond Purchaser

Issuer, Borrowers and Bond Purchaser

Issuer and Borrowers

Bond Purchaser

PLAN OF FINANCING

There will be a single series of Bonds that will be issued in an amount not to
exceed $ 1 ,650,000.

The Bonds will bear interest at a fixed rate based upon an index.

Interest on the Bonds will be exempt from federal and Arizona income

taxation.

The Bonds will be issued under and pursuant to the approving Resolution of
the Authority and the provisions of the Amended and Restated Financing Agreement.



RYTEYCARTOCK
Mayor and Town Council
Board of Directors
of The Industrial Development Authority
of the Town of Florence, Inc.

June 1,2015
Page 5

&A P P L E W H I T E
AttorneJls

The Bonds will be purchased by and held by BBVA Compass Bank or an

Affiliate, In connection therewith the purchaser will execute, in favor of the Authority, an
agreed upon form of Investor Letter.

The proceeds received from the sale of the Bonds will be loaned to the
Borrowers under and in accordance with the provisions of the Financing Agreement. The
Borrowers will be unconditionally obligated to make loan repayments at such times and in
such amounts as necessary to timely pay interest and principal on the Bonds.

The obligations of the Borrowers under the Financing Agreement will be
secured by a first deed of trust lien on the real property and improvements that comprise the
charter school facilities and by a security interest in the business assets of the Borrowers,

TOWN COUNCIL APPROVAL

The Town Council of the Town of Florence is requested, at its meeting on
June 15,2015, to act as required by law to adopt a resolution approving the proceedings of
the Authority for the issuance of the Bonds.

NO LIABILITY ON THE TOWN OF FLORENCE

Under the provisions of A.R.S, ç 35-742, the Town of Florence shall not in
any event be liable for the paynent of the principal or interest on the Bonds of the Authority
or for the performance by the Authority of any of its obligations with respect to its Bonds nor
shall any agreements or obligations of the Authority constitute an indebtedness of the Town
of Florence within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory provision whatsoever.

TRANSACTION CLOSING

If the required approvals of the Authority and the Town Council of the Town
of Florence are received, it is currently anticipated that the Bonds will be issued in late June
2015.

LEGAL COUNSEL RECOMMENDATION

As counsel to the Authority, we have reviewed drafts of the principal
financing documents, we have been advised that these documents are now in substantially
final form, and based upon our review of such and our review of the proceedings of the
Authority to date relating to the proposed issuance of the Bonds, we believe the financing
documents and proceedings are in substantial conformance with the policies and guidelines
of the Authority and are in both form and substance acceptable for the Authority Board and
Florence Town Council to act upon and that the Resolution presented to the Authority Board
relating to authorizing the issuance and sale of the Bonds, and the Resolution presented to the



RYLEYCARLOCK
Mayor and Town Council
Board of Directors
of The Industrial Development Authority
of the Town of Florence, Inc.

June 1,2015
Page 6

&A P P L E W H IT E
AttorneJ/s

Florence Town Council approving the proceedings of the Authority for the issuance of the

Bonds and related matters, are in form and substance acceptable for the Authority Board to
adopt.

Yours very truly,

Legal Counsel, The Industrial Development
Authority of the Town of Florence, Inc.

cc Board of f)irectors,
The Industrial Development Authority
of the Town of Florence, Inc.

Mr. Charles Montoya
Ms, Lisa Garcia



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
8b. 

MEETING DATE: June 15, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT: Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Mark Eckhoff, AICP 
                                     Community Development Director 
 
SUBJECT: Discussion and direction on future annexations  

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to direct staff to: 

1. Continue to pursue all reasonably viable annexations. 
Subject: Direction on Future Annexations                                                        Meeting Date: June 15, 2015 
Page 1 of 2 

2. Bring all future annexation requests to the Town Council for direction before the 
filing of any new annexations. 

3. Not file any new annexations until future direction from the Town Council. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Town has had a fairly robust annexation philosophy for several years, traditionally 
focusing on largely undeveloped tracts that initially would have low service needs, but 
ultimately would offer notable economic development benefits (rooftops, population 
increases, increased tax revenues, businesses, employment, future freeway 
improvements, etc.).  Though the Magic Ranch and Arizona Farms annexations differed 
from the Town’s traditional annexation model because of the notable existing 
infrastructure and population, these annexations offered tremendous economic benefits 
over time as development picked up within these areas.  Furthermore, upon annexation, 
the existing population base in these annexations offered advantages once the 
population was reflected in our U.S. Census numbers.  
 
Since much has changed over the past several months, staff believes it is prudent to 
reassess how we pursue future annexation proposals.  Factors influencing the necessity 
for this reevaluation include, but are not limited to, the following: new councilmembers, 
reduced revenue collections, current limitations on our expenditures and a reduced 
capital budget.  The uncertainty surrounding the status of the Magic Ranch and Arizona 
Farms annexations may also influence decisions on future annexations.  Ultimately, 
staff thought that it would be more proactive to get Council’s direction on future 
annexations though this action item rather than to have these discussions after future 
annexations are filed and being processed.  
 



Subject: Direction on Future Annexations                                                        Meeting Date: June 15, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 

Currently, one new annexation has been formally proposed.  That annexation is for a 
solar farm project proposed east of the Town.  The applicants were not successful 
getting this project entitled in Pinal County so they chose to pursue annexation into the 
Town.  Staff is collecting information to quantify the fiscal impacts of this annexation. 
There are a few more possible annexations being discussed.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The financial impact of this decision depends upon the direction provided to staff and 
the types of future annexations considered or not considered.  Each annexation filed will 
be closely analyzed to determine the fiscal impacts, including how the Town plans to 
service the new territory upon annexation. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Motion to direct staff to: 

1. Continue to pursue all reasonably viable annexations. 
2. Bring all future annexation requests to the Town Council for direction before the 

filing of any new annexations. 
3. Not file any new annexations until future direction from the Town Council. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
None 
 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
8c. 

MEETING DATE:  June 15, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst 
 
SUBJECT:    Discussion item on the Property Lease Policy 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
None 
Subject: Discussion Item on the Property Lease Policy Meeting Date: June 15, 2015 
Page 1 of 2 

 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The proposed Property Lease Policy provides guidance for leasing properties owned by 
the Town of Florence.  The policy applies to surplus properties that are not required for 
current municipal use, but can be leased on an interim basis and held for future use. 
The buildings that could be leased under the policy are the Brunenkant Building and the 
Silver King Marketplace, if the Town rescinds the Silver King Marketplace Lease Policy 
that is currently in place.  Relevant portions of the Silver King Marketplace Lease Policy 
have been incorporated into the Property Lease Policy under Sections 4.2, 5.3, and 5.8. 
 
Under the Property Lease Policy, properties are leased to a tenant for a specific use 
that is subject to the Town General Plan, zoning ordinances, and other regulations. 
Subleasing or assignment of leases will not be allowed.  The policy also contains 
provisions that address tenant improvements, lease default, insurance, signage and 
performance standards.  The Request for Proposal process will be used to lease a 
property.  Proposals will be evaluated on compatibility with neighboring uses, the 
development plan and timetable, business plan, capital investment, experience of 
applicant financial capability, number of employees to be hired, proposed rental rate, 
and tax revenue generation.  Once the proposals are evaluated, the Town Manager or 
designee will recommend the successful applicant for approval by the Town Council.  
All leases will be for one year with a mutual option for two, one-year renewals. 
 
The Town seeks to maximize the value of its property and lease them for the highest 
and best use.  Properties may be rented on a gross lease basis at the fair market rental 
rate and assessed an administrative fee of 5% of the rental rate.  The administrative fee 
offsets staffing costs associated with managing the leases.  Fair market rent is defined 
as rental income that a public and private property would most likely command in the 
open market.  



Subject: Discussion Item on the Property Lease Policy Meeting Date: June 15, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 

Factors that may be considered when determining the rental rate include, but are not 
limited to, the use of the property, the Town’s economic development objectives, 
location of the property, or an alternative valuation methodology that may be negotiated 
by both parties.  The Town Council may approve a lease for less than fair market rent if 
the motion approving the lease contains a finding that the lease is for a valuable public 
purpose or use.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The financial impact of leasing the Brunenkant Building could be $1,365.81 per month in 
revenue.  The building is 2,682 square feet and the average rental rate for downtown 
properties is $5.82 per square foot or $1,300.77 per month.  With the 5% administrative 
fee, $65.04 would be added to the rent for a total of $1,365.81 per month.  
 
Lease rates at the Silver King Marketplace vary based on the size of the suites.  The 
Silver King Marketplace Lease Policy allowed reduced lease rates for new and 
expanding retail from $2.50 to $6.00 per square foot.  Lease rates for non-retail 
businesses are between $6.00 and $10.00 per square foot.  Currently, Suites 101 and 
201 are leased for $3.00 per square foot or $142.50 and $121.33 per month 
respectively, plus the cost of utilities.  Utilities are billed separately at a rate of $.61 per 
square foot.  Soon, recent upgrades will allow utilities to be charged for actual usage by 
suite. 
 
Offering reduced rates has not resulted in attracting renters.  Staff thought that once 
Padilla Park was completed we would see an influx of interest, but this has not been the 
case.  Two suites at the Silver King Marketplace remain open. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
None, for discussion only.  We would like Town Council’s thoughts on the subject prior 
to staff completing the policy for Council consideration. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Property Lease Policy 
Silver King Marketplace Lease Policy 



 

 
PROPERTY LEASE POLICY   PAGE 1 OF 11 

 
 

Town of Florence  

 
1.0 Purpose 
 

Provide guidance and outline procedures for all leasing activities on properties 
owned by the Town of Florence with the exception of the Silver King Marketplace 
which is administered under the Silver King Marketplace Lease Policy. 

 
2.0 Scope 
 

The policy applies to surplus properties owned by the Town of Florence. The 
properties are not required for current municipal use, but can be leased on an 
interim basis and held for possible future use. 

 
3.0 Responsibilities 
 

3.1 The Town Council has responsibility for approving and adopting the lease 
policies and for final approval of all leases. 

 
3.2 The Town Manager or designee is responsible for all lease negotiation       

activities and for implementing and administering the lease policies and       
procedures. 

 
3.3 The Town Finance Department is responsible for the billing and collection of all    

rents, utilities, and late payments. 
 
4.0 Policies 
 
       4.1 General 
 

4.11 The Town of Florence will lease property when it is in the overall best 
interest of the Town to do so. The Town will seek to maximize the value of 
its assets and lease property for the highest and best use. 

 

POLICY TITLE:  
 PROPERTY  LEASE POLICY 

EFFECTIVE DATE:  

RESPONSIBLE DEPARTMENT:   
Administration 
 

AP / RESOLUTION NO.:   
Resolution No. 

APPROVAL:                                                        REFERENCES:   
 

 TOWN MANAGER     SIGNATURE:  _______________ 
  

 TOWN COUNCIL       DATE APPROVED:____________ 



 

 
PROPERTY LEASE POLICY   PAGE 2 OF 11 

4.12 The Town will implement its leasing program in a fair and 
nondiscriminatory manner and in accordance with all local, state and 
Federal legal requirements. Opportunities for leases on Town owned 
properties will be made available to the public through the request for 
proposal process described herein. 

 
4.13 The Town will lease property to a tenant for a specific purpose or use. 

Leasing for the purpose of speculation, subleasing, or assignment of 
leases is not allowed. 

 
4.14 All properties, with the exception of the Silver King Marketplace, identified 

as available for lease by the Town of Florence shall be subject to the 
lease policies and procedures contained herein. 

 
       4.2 Acceptable and Unacceptable Uses 
 

4.21 All uses and activities on properties made available for lease are subject to 
the Town General Plan, zoning ordinances and other applicable local, 
state, and federal laws and regulations. 

 
4.22 The Town Council may restrict specific Town properties to certain uses or 

classes of use. Such properties will be available for leasing only for such 
uses. 

 
4.23 Businesses whose primary purpose is office and administrative operations 

are prohibited from leasing a suite on the ground level of the Silver King 
Marketplace. The second floor space is available for both retail and non-
retail uses. 

 
4.24 A lease is not extended to a proposed tenant in the Silver King 

Marketplace if the business is in direct competition with an existing 
business located within the building. 

 
4.25 Leases in the Silver King Marketplace are not extended to residential 

dwellings, clubs, and membership organizations. 
 
4.26 Space within the Silver King Marketplace will not be leased or rented on a 

temporary basis for special events. Tenants of the Silver King Marketplace 
may hold special events in as much as these events are within the 
confines of their regular business and are meant to increase foot traffic to 
the tenant’s business. 

 
4.27 Businesses leasing space in the Silver King Marketplace should promote 

foot traffic, contribute to the vibrancy of the downtown and not be 
considered a prohibited use in accordance with Section 6.0 of this policy.  

 



 

 
PROPERTY LEASE POLICY   PAGE 3 OF 11 

5.0 Procedures 
 

5.1 Requests for Proposal Procedures and Evaluation Process 
 

5.11 A submitted proposal shall include:  
 

5.111 A clear and precise narrative description of the proposed use of the 
property. 

 
5.112 A specific time schedule and benchmarks for development. 
 
5.113 Any other information that is directly pertinent to the proposal 

scoring criteria contained in Section 5.13. 
 
5.114 Other required attachments may be requested including, but not 

limited to applicant information, business plan, site plan, certificate 
of insurance, financial information, partnership or corporation 
statement, and references. 

 
5.115 Any other information required by the Town of Florence. 

 
5.12 All proposals shall be evaluated by the Town Manager or designee. 
 
5.13 The criteria for evaluating proposals shall include, but is not limited to the 

following: 
 

5.131 Compatibility with neighboring uses and consistency with applicable 
land use regulations including the General Plan. 

 
5.132 The development plan including all proposed phases and 

timetables. 
 
5.133 Submittal of a business plan. 
 
5.134 Experience of the applicant in the proposed business or venture. 
 The proposed capital investment. 
 
5.135 Financial capability or backing of the applicant including credit 

history, prior lease history, and assets that will be used to support 
the proposed development. 

Experience of the applicant in the proposed business or venture. 
 
5.136 The number of employees that will be hired. 
Financial capability or backing of the applicant including credit history, 

prior lease history, and assets that will be used to support the 
proposed development. 

 
5.137 The proposed rental rate. 



 

 
PROPERTY LEASE POLICY   PAGE 4 OF 11 

The number of employees that will be hired. 
 
5.138 Other financial impacts such as tax revenues, stimulation of related 

or spin-off economic development.The proposed rental rate. 
 
5.139 Other long term social and economic development.Other financial 

impacts such as tax revenues, stimulation of related or spin-off 
economic development. 

 
5.140 Other long term social and economic development. 

 
5.14 After evaluating the proposals, the Town Manager or designee shall make 

a recommendation on a successful applicant to the Town Council. The 
recommendation shall be forwarded with the lease document for 
presentation to the Town Council for approval.  

 
5.15 The Town Council shall approve the proposed lease, disapprove the 

proposed lease, or remand the unapproved lease to the Town Manager 
with comments. 

 
5.2 Lease Implementation 

 
5.21 The Town Manager or designee may develop one or more standardized 

building leases (, as many as necessary to apply to each Town building 
available for leasing), containing standard provisions applicable to all 
leases of space in a Town owned building. The standard lease documents 
shall be reviewed by the Town Attorney,  and approved by the Town 
Council, and executed by the Mayor. 

 
5.22 The Town Manager or designee is responsible for lease negotiations, 

including any negotiated changes in the standard lease terms. The Town 
Manager or designee shall take into consideration the following when 
negotiating the terms of the lease: 

 
5.221 The nature of the proposed use. 
 
5.222 The type and cost of the improvements to be placed in or on the 

property, and whether such improvements shall remain in or on the 
property after the expiration or termination of the lease. 

 
5.223 Period of time required to amortize the improvements. 
  
5.224 Overall benefit to the Town. 
 
5.225 Consistency with the General Plan and all other relevant land use 

codes and regulations. 
 
5.226 Date of commencement and completion of improvements. 



 

 
PROPERTY LEASE POLICY   PAGE 5 OF 11 

 
5.227 Other factors deemed relevant by the Town Manager or designee. 

 
5.3 Lease Rental Rates and Payments 

 
5.31 General Lease Rental Rates 

 
5.311 All pProperties shall be rented on a gross lease basis at fair market 

rent. An administrative fee of 5% of the rental rate will be assessed 
on all leases. Government property lease excise tax shawill be 
assessed in accordance with A.R.S. § 42-6201 et seq. 

 
5.312 Payment of a higher than market rate resulting from an applicant’s 

proposal is generally in the public interest and will help to establish 
fair market rent using current market forces. 

 
5.313 The Town Council may approve a lease of Town property for less 

than fair market rent only if the motion approving the lease contains 
a finding that the lease is for a valuable public purpose or use and 
stating such public purpose or use. 

 
5.314 A security deposit of no less than one month rent is paid by the 

tenant upon approval of the lease by the Town Council. The deposit 
may be increased or decreased depending on the type of business, 
length of lease and information in the business plan. 

 
5.315 Lease rental rates at the Silver King Marketplace range from $2.50 

to $6.00 per square foot for retail businesses. Rent for non-retail 
businesses is $6.00 to $10.00 per square foot. 

 
 

 
5.32 Rental Rate Determination:  Factors that may be considered when 

determining the specific lease rate for individual leases include: 
 

5.321 The highest and best use of the land. 
 
5.322 The Town’s economic development objectives. 
 
5.323 The location of the property. 
 
5.324 Alternative valuation methodologies as negotiated by both parties. 
 
 
 
55.325 Parameters set out by the Town Council under Section 5.31. 
 

5.33 Utilities 

Formatted: None, Don't keep with next

Formatted: None, Don't keep with next

Formatted: None, Indent: Left:  0.6", Don't
keep with next



 

 
PROPERTY LEASE POLICY   PAGE 6 OF 11 

 
5.331 The Town of Florence will maintain accounts for electric, water, and 

gas service, as applicable. Tenants will be invoiced for utility costs 
on a monthly basis. 

 
5.332 The utility rate at the Silver King Marketplace is assessed on a per 

square foot basis, per month. The Town bears the costs for the 
common area square footage and costs associated with the 
dedicated phone line used by the fire suppression system. The 
tenant bears the full costs of all cable, internet, and telephone 
service, if so elected, including deposits, setup, and cancellation 
fees. The Town reserves the right to adjust the utility rate semi-
annually. 

 
5.34 Collection of payment 
 

Payment of rent and utilities are due on the first day of each month. If the 
first day of the month falls on a Saturday, Sunday or holiday then the rent 
shall be due the next regular business day. The tenant has a five-day 
grace period and it is the sole responsibility of the tenant to pay their rent 
and utilities at the beginning of each month. The Town was assess a 
$25.00 late fee after the five day grace period. The Town will also assess 
returned check fees pursuant to local laws and regulations.  

 
 

5.4 Tenant Improvements 
 

5.41 All tenant improvements must be submitted, in writing, when the lease 
application is submitted to the Town of Florence. The tenant may also 
submit tentative improvements, in writing, after the lease has been 
accepted by the Town. All tenant improvement requests must be approved 
by the Town Manager or designee prior to construction. 

 
5.42 All tenant improvements which require a building permit must be 

performed by a licensed commercial contractor and approved by Town 
staff. 

 
5.43 If a building permit is required, the tenant must follow the Town’s 

processes and procedures to obtain a building permit from the Community 
Development Department. 

 
5.44 If a tenant improvement is permanent in nature (e.g. flooring and lighting) 

and adds value to the leased space, the Town Manager or designee 
makes the final determination whether the proposed improvements are 
acceptable prior to the tenant making the improvement. 

 
5.5 Duration and Conclusion of Leases 

 

Formatted: None, Don't keep with next

Formatted: None, Indent: Left:  0.6", Don't
keep with next

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.6"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1", First line:  0"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1", Hanging:  0.5"



 

 
PROPERTY LEASE POLICY   PAGE 7 OF 11 

5.51 All leases are for one year with a mutual option for two one-year renewals. 
The term may be shorter or longer depending on the tenant, potential 
tenant improvements and preference of the Town. 

 
5.52 A lease is terminated when the lease expires, the tenant provides proper 

notification per the lease or the tenant defaults per the lease agreement. 
 
5.53 Any unpaid amount owed to the Town by the tenant requires the Town to 

follow debt collection procedures. This may include Town staff making 
collection calls, referring the debt to a collection agency, or requesting the 
Town Attorney to initiate legal action on the lease agreement.  

 
5.54 At the end of the lease, the Town conducts an inspection of the premises 

and documents any damages. The estimated damage amount is removed 
from the security deposit. If the estimated damage amount exceeds the 
security deposit, the Town will charge the tenant for the remaining balance 
of repairs. Any remaining balance of the security deposit is returned to the 
tenant 30 days after the lease has expired. 

 
5.55 Lease Default 

 
5.551 If the tenant does not perform the types of services as outlined in 

their business plan, becomes 30 days delinquent on lease 
payments, or fails to meet the covenants of the lease, the Town 
declares a landlord lien and begins the eviction process. 

 
5.552 When the Town declares a landlord lien, a certified letter is sent to 

the tenant informing them of the landlord lien. The Town also enters 
the premises to post a notice of the landlord lien and lock the 
leased premises. The tenant will have five business days from the 
post date of the letter to respond and satisfy the outstanding issues 
identified. If no action is taken to remedy the cause of termination of 
the lease, the Town will either sell the merchandise and equipment 
within the space to satisfy any delinquency or will remove the 
contents of the space and store the items off-site at the tenant’s 
expense. If a termination occurs, the tenant forgoes any and all 
rights to the security deposit and the tenant is assessed a $150.00 
re-key fee.  

 
5.56 Conclusion of Lease 

 
5.561 Tenant improvements constructed by the tenant shall be left in 

place unless removal is authorized or required by the provisions of 
the lease. If the lease authorizes or requires removal of 
improvements, they may be removed prior to the conclusion of the 
lease if doing so would not damage the leased property or adjoining 
properties. Removing improvements shall be coordinated with and 



 

 
PROPERTY LEASE POLICY   PAGE 8 OF 11 

approved by the Town Manager or designee prior to 
commencement of activities. 

 
5.562 Unless otherwise agreed to by parties, when the tenant is 

authorized or required to remove improvements, the tenant shall 
remove all improvements made on the property by tenant prior to 
termination of the lease. 

 
5.563 When authorized or required to remove improvements, if tenant fails 

to do so prior to the termination date of the lease, tenant shall forfeit 
the improvements to the Town and shall receive no compensation. 
The Town may require the tenant to pay to the Town the costs 
incurred by the Town in removing and disposing of the 
improvements. 

 
5.564 Unless otherwise provided in the lease, or agreed to in writing by 

the parties, the tenant shall restore the property to the same 
condition it was in at the time the lease was executed by the tenant. 

 
5.6 Insurance 

 
5.61 The tenant must provide the Town of Florence with a copy of the insurance 

policy naming the Town, its agents, officers, officials and employees as 
additional insured. The tenant must have coverage of a least $1,000,000 
of comprehensive public liability (i.e. bodily injury, broad form property 
damage, personal injury and blanket contractual coverage) and 
$1,000,000 per each occurrence. If the tenant’s operations require the use 
of open flame, tenant will also provide insurance coverage for fire and 
casualty on the leased premises in an amount sufficient to provide 
replacement cost of the leased premises. The Town Manager or designee 
may raise the required amount at his/her discretion depending upon 
trends in the insurance industry, value of the building and the tenant’s 
business. 

 
5.62 Certificates of Insurance showing the required insurance is in effect and 

identifying the Town of Florence as an additional insured shall be provided 
to the Town of Florence initially at the time a lease becomes effective and 
annually thereafter, and upon every change in insurance provider or 
insurance coverage. 

 
5.63 All insurance policies must be in effect for the duration of the lease term, or 

longer if stated in the lease, and the Town must be notified of any changes 
to policies. 

 
5.7 Hazardous Materials 

 



 

 
PROPERTY LEASE POLICY   PAGE 9 OF 11 

5.71 The tenant shall not allow hazardous materials to be used or kept on Town 
property, except as specifically permitted or necessary for the tenant’s 
lawful use and approved of the property. 

 
5.72 The tenant’s use of hazardous materials, if permitted, shall comply with all 

applicable laws and regulations. 
 
5.73 The tenant shall not pollute or contaminate the environment with 

discharges, leaks, or emissions of hazardous materials. 
 
5.74 The tenant shall be required to promptly notify the appropriate authorities 

and the Town of any discharge or spill and to clean up the impacted area 
at tenant’s own expense in compliance with applicable laws. 

 
5.75 Tenant shall be fully liable for all damages, costs and expenses related to 

a violation of the terms of the lease with respect to the use, storage, 
cleanup, remediation, or disposal of hazardous materials. 

 
5.8 Signage 

 
5.81 The tenant has the right, at its sole risk and expense, to erect and 

thereafter, to repair or replace, if the tenant so elects, signs on the exterior 
of the leased property. The tenant must remove any such signs within 15 
days after termination of the lease and repair all damage occasioned 
thereby to the leased premises at the tenant’s sole cost and expense. 

 
5.82 Any and all signage erected by the tenant must conform to all applicable 

laws and ordinances outlined in Town Code Chapter 150, Part 3 (Sign 
Regulations). 

 
5.83 Tenants will pay a fee of $75.00 for an exterior sign on the east side of the 

Silver King Marketplace at the time of the lease. The signage fee is non-
refundable and covers the cost and proper hanging of the sign. The tenant 
provides the Town with the business name and, if necessary, the services 
it provides. More extensive signs, such as additional rider shingle signs, 
may require a higher signage fee, per the discretion of the Town Manager 
or designee. 

 
5.9 Performance Standards 

 
5.91 All properties leased by the Town are to be maintained in a proper, safe, 

clean, and orderly fashion taking into consideration its permitted use, 
surrounding, properties, zoning, and other applicable laws and 
regulations. 

 
5.92 The Town of Florence reserves the right to enter leased property and the 

structures thereon at all reasonable times. This includes regular annual 
inspections. 



 

 
PROPERTY LEASE POLICY   PAGE 10 OF 11 

 
5.93 All commercial structures shall at all times be in compliance with 

applicable building, fire, mechanical, electrical and other regulations. 
 
5.94 Applicable building code and fire marshal inspections must be performed 

and certified to the Town upon completion of all renovations, remodels, 
and/or new construction. 

 
5.95 Easements or rights-of-way on the leased parcel shall not be used in any 

way that interferes with the rights of the holders or any person(s) lawfully 
using the easement or right-of-way. 

 
5.96 Easements or rights-of-way outside of the leased parcel and/or 

immediately adjacent to it shall not be used for storage, parking, or any 
other unauthorized uses. 

 
5.97 Failure to comply with the performance standards listed in this section or 

any other provisions or stipulations contained in the lease are grounds for 
termination of the lease if the tenant does not rectify the problem after 
reasonable notice by the Town. 

 
6.0 Definitions 

 
6.1 Fair Market Rent: Rental income that a public and private property would most 

likely command in the open market; indicated by the current rents paid for 
comparable space. 

 
6.2 Tenant Improvements: Any changes made to the interior of a tenant space 

within the property to accommodate the individual needs of the leased space, 
such a flooring, wall coverings, window coverings, ceilings, partitions, air 
conditioning, fire protection and security.  

 
6.3 Landlord Lien:  Lien placed on a tenant’s property for the satisfaction of unpaid 

rent or property damage. 
 
6.4 Prohibited Uses: Neither the Town nor the tenant shall permit the following uses 

inside or on the premises of the Silver King Marketplace: 
 

Manufacturing or industrial purposes. 
 
Sale, distribution or display of any drug paraphernalia primarily used in the use 
or ingestion of illicit drugs. 
 
Any purpose prohibited by law. 
 
A tattoo or piercing parlor. 
 
Any off-track betting club or facility. 

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.6", First line:  0"



 

 
PROPERTY LEASE POLICY   PAGE 11 OF 11 

 
Any operation primarily used as a storage facility. 
 
An adult bookstore or facility selling or displaying pornographic books, literature 
or videotapes. 
 
Church or place of worship, not to include religious bookstores or other 
ecclesiastical retail goods. 
 
A pawn shop. 
 
A gun shop. 
 
 

7.0 Supplemental Forms 
 

Standard Lease Agreement 
 

 
Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.2", Hanging:  0.4"




















	June 15, 2015 Agenda
	Page 2
	Page 3

	6. PUBLIC HEARINGS AND PRESENTATIONS
	6a. Safeway 3325 N Hunt Highway Liq License App
	6b. Safeway 3313 N Hunt Highway Liq License App

	7. CONSENT
	7a. Task Order No 2 with Baxter Design Group
	7b. IGA with AZ Dept. of Revenue
	7c Ratification of Change Orders 3 through 13 for Sun Western Contractors
	7d. Resolution No. 1526-15 Bank Signatories
	7e. May 4, 2015 Council Minutes
	7e. May 18, 2015 Council Minutes

	7f i. March 31, 2015 HDAC Minutes
	7f ii. March 18, 2015 Library Minutes
	7f iii. Janaury 22, 2015 Parks Board Minutes


	8. NEW BUSINESS
	8a. Resolution No. 1522-15 IDA Bonds
	8b. Future Annexations
	8c. Property Lease Policy




